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Moss, Levy & Hartzheim LLP 
Certified Public Accountants 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

City Council of the City of Greenfield 
Greenfield, California 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governments! activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Cíty of Greenfield, as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, and the 
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of 
contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting 
principles general accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal 
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the audito considers internal control relevant to the 
entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we 
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the 
governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of 
Greenfield, as of June 30, 2019, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the fiscal 
year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

2400 Professions( Parkway, Suite 205 Santa Maria, CA 93455  Te(  805.925.2579 Fax 805.925.2147 mlhcpas.com  
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Emphasis of Matter 

As more fully described in Note 16 to the financial statements, the City may be materially impacted by the outbreak of the novel 
coronavirus (COVID-19), which was declared a global pandemic by the World Health Organization in March 2020. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and analysis on 
pages 3 through 11, the budgetary information on pages 55 through 60, the schedule of proportionate share of net pension liability on 
page 61, and the schedule of pension contributions on page 62, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such 
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who 
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquires of management about the 
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries of 
the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express 
an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to 
express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the City of 
Greenfield's basic financial statements. The combining nonmajor governmental funds financial statements and combining fiduciary 
funds financial statements are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial 
statements. 

The combining nonmajor funds financial statements and combining fiduciary funds financial statements are the responsibility of 
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or the basic financial statements themselves, and other 
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the 
combining nonmajor funds financial statements and combining fiduciary funds financial statements are fairly stated, in all material 
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 6, 2020, on our consideration of the 
City of Greenfield's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control 
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the City's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Santa Maria, California 
June 6, 2020 
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MA(~AGEMENT'S C~ISCUssIC~l~ A~1[~ ANALYs1s 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019 

~ ~• ~ •~ 

In accordance with Governmental Accounting standards Board {GASB} statement Igo. ~4, management of the City of Greenfield {the 
City) provides the following narrative overview and analysis of the City's financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. We 
encourage readers to review this dïscussion and analysis in conjunctïon with the City's basic financial statements and the 
accompanying notes to the financial statements, which are available at City Hall and on the City's website {www.ci.greenfield.ca.us}. 

~inar~~ia! Hi~hli~~ts 

➢ The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the City exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows of resources at fiscal 
year end June 3.0, 2019 by $71,~1~,089. This represents an increase of $2,524,47 from the prior fiscal year. 

~ As of June B0, 2019, the City's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of 20,793,~5~. This represents 
an increase of $1,509,780 from the prior fiscal year. 

~ As of June 80, 2019, the unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was 2,123,11 or 25.3~Q of total General Fund 
expenditures. 

A The City employs Governmental Accounting Standards Board statement No. à8, „Accounting and Financial Departing far 

Pensions" {GAB 68) and Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 71, "Pension Transitisn~far Contri,~utians 

made Subsequent to the iirleasurcment Gate — an amendment ©f GASH Statement ~S {GASB 71). As a result, the City's net 

pension liability was $4,533,521. 

➢ The City adopted Governmental Accounting standards Board Statement I~Ja. 72, „Fair Value li~leasurement and Application" 

{GASB 72). As of June 30, 2019, the City held investments with ~.evel 1 inputs valued at $2,579,178. 

{~v~rview of the ~inancia! ~t~tements 

Management's discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basïc financial statements, which includes 
three components: 1} government-wide financial statements, 2} fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. 

This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements. 

Government-wide ~ïnancial Statements 

The Government-wide Financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City's finances, in a manner 
similar to aprivate-sector business. These statements present governmental activities and business-type activities separately and 
contain all assets of the City as well as all liabilities {including long-term debt}. In addition, certain eliminations, as prescribed by GAB 
Statement Igo. 34, have occurred with regard to interfund activity, payables and receivables. 

The Statement of t'Vet Position presents information on all of the City's assets and liabilities, and the difference between the two is 

reported as net pasiti©n. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial 

position of the City of Greenfield is improving or deteriorating. 

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the government's net position changed during the most recent fiscal 
year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing 

of related cash flows. In other wards, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will ©nly result in cash 
flows in future fiscal periods {e.g., uncollected taxes; or earned, but unused, vacation leave}. 



I~IiANAGEMENT`S QISCUSSIQN AND ANA~.YSIS 
Fiscal Year Ended June o, 20~,~ 

~V@t"Vi~1N g~ ~~1~ ~#~1~nCÍ~~ ~it~t@n1~i1tS (caratinued)  

The Government-wide Financial Statements characterize functions of the City that are principa#ly supported by taxes and 
intergovernmental revenues as governmental activities, and other functions that are intended to recover all or s significant portion of 
their costs through user fees and charges ss business-type activities. The governmental activities of the City include general 
government, public works, building and planning, parks and recreation, community development, public safety, and streets and roads. 
The business-type activities of the City include water and sewer utilities. 

As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, these finsncia# statements present the 
financial activity of the City, which is the primary government. The City previously had a component unit 4the Redevelopment Agency 
of the City of Greenfield} through January 31, 201, for which the government was considered to be financially accountable. Effective 
February 1, ~U~.2, Assembly Bi## AB J.x~, as modified by the California Supreme Court, disco#ved redevelopment agencies in California. 
All assets and liabilities were required to be transferred to the corresponding Successor Agency identified in each community. In 
Greenfield, the City became the Successor Agency and holds these assets and #íabi#ities in Private Purpose Trust. See Dote 15 (pages 
SB and 54} in the Notes to the Financial Statements, for further details on the Successor Agency. The Cíty has no component units that 
require discrete presentation in accordance with GASB Statement No. 14, as amended by GASB Statements No. 39 and No. Erl. 

The Government-wide Financial Statements can be found on pages 12 through 15 of this report. 

Fund Financial Stater~ents 

A fund is s grouping of re#aced accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities 
or objectives. The City, #ike other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate comp#lance with 
finance-re#aced legal requirements. AI# of the funds of the City can be divided ïnto three categories of activities: governmental funds, 
proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds. 

t~vernrrtent~l Funds 

Governmental funds are used to account for essentis# #y the same functions reported as governments# activities in the Government-
wide  Financis#  Statements. However, unlike the Government-wide Financial Statements, Governments# Funds Financial Statements 
focus on near-term inf#ows and Duff#own of spendable resources, as we## as on balances of spendable resources available at the end 
of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government's near-term financïng requirements. 

Because the focus of Governmental Funds Financial Statements is narrower than that of Government-wide Financial Statements, it is 
usefu# to compare the information presented for governments# funds with similar information presented for governmental activities 
in the Government-wide Financial Statements. By doing so, renders may better understand thè long-term impact of the government's 
near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental funds bs#once sheet and the governmental funds statement of revenues, 
expendïtures, and changes in fund ba#antes provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison of governments# funds to the 
governmental activities. 

The City maintains mu#tiple individual governments# funds. GASB Statement No. 4 requires the City`s major funds be identified and 
presented separately ín the Governmental Funds Financial Statements. Information for the General Fund is always considered to be a 
major fund and is presented separately in the governmental funds balance sheet and in the governmental funds statement of 
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances. In addition to the Genera# Fund, the Home Grant Fund, the Traffic Impact Fund, 
the General Facilities Impact Fund, the Hauling Fund, the Supplemental Transaction and Use Tax Fund, and the Capital Projects Fund 
are reported as major funds. Gatti from the other ~nanmajor} governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation 
in the governmental funds balance sheet and ïn the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund 
balances. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental funds are provided in the form of combining fïnancial 
statements in the Supplemental Information section of this report. The Supplemental Information section can be found on pages 64 
through 7~ of this report, 
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MA~JAC~EMENT'S l~ISCUSSI~JN ANa AI~IA~.YSIS 
Fiscal Year Ended June 3a, 2a19 

C~v~rview C~f the ~inancia! Stat~ments (eontinued j 

The Ciiy adopis an annual appropriations budget fior all of its .governmental fiends. A budgetary comparison statement has been 
provided in the Required Supplemental Infiormation section, far the General Fund and for the five major special revenue funds. 
Requíred Supplemenial Information far these major funds can be found on pages 55 ihrough fa of this rep©ri. 

The basic Governmental Funds Financial Statements can be fiound on pages 1~ through 22 of this report. 

Pr+~arietary ~unds  

Proprietary Funds Financial Statements provide the same type of information as the business-type activities in the Government-wide 
Financial Statements, but in mare detail. The City maintains two proprietary funds, the water Fund, and the Sewer Fund. These are 
also known as Enterprise Funds, Each proprieiary fund is considered major and ís presented individually in the fund financial 

statements, 

The Proprieiary Funds Financial Statements can be found on pages 23 thr©ugh 2~ of this report. 

1=ieluciary I~unds  

The City maintains five fiduciary funds, which are rep©rigid as Private Purpose Trust Funds, the Successor Agency Adminisiraiive Fund, 
the Successor Agency Capital Projects Fund, the Successor Agency ~aa2 Band i~ebt Service Fund, the Successor Agency 2aa5 Bond 

C~ebt Servïce Fund, and the Successor Agency 2a1~ Band Debt Servïce Fund. These five funds are private-purpose truss funds of the 

City. The fiduciary funds fiinancial statements can be found on pages ~i and 2~ of ibis report. 

No► tes ta ihe I'inanci~! 5tatements  

The notes pravide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and 
fund financial statements. The notes io the financial statements can be found on pages 2~ ihrough 54 of ibis  repari.  

Caber Inf©rr~ati©n 

In addiiion to the basic financïal statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain Required Supplemental 
Information. In addition to budgetary comparison schedules far the General Fund and Major Special Revenue Funds found on pages 
55 ihrough E0, the Required Supplemental Information section also presents net pension liability and coniribution schedules, which 

can be found on pages 61 and ~~ of ibis  repari.  

5 



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Government-wide Financial Analysis 

As noted earlier, net position may serve as a useful indicator of a government's financial position over time. In the case of the City of 

Greenfield, assets and deferred outflows or resources exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by $71,814,089 at June 

30, 2019. 

Statement of Net Position 

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total 

~n~ q ~n~ R ~n~ ~ ~n~ R ~n~ n ~n~ R 

Current and other assets 

Capital assets 

Total assets 

Deferred outflows of resources 

Current liabilities 

Noncurrent liabilities 

Total liabilities 

$ 31,640,657 $ 29,799,805 $ 3,434,217 $ 3,920,261 ~ 35,074,874 ~ 33,720,066 

34,992,675 33,416,025 18,987,037 18,330,021 53,979,712 51,746,046 

66,633,332 63,215,830 22,421,254 22,250,282 89,054,586 85,466,112 

1,509,037 1,799,272 151,373 200,718 1,660,410 1,999,990 

1,878,966 1,434,582 681,880 668,209 2,560,846 2,102,791 

9,983,745 9,273,733 6,158,464 6,559,948 16,142,209 15,833,681 

11,862,711 10,708,315 6,840,344 7,228,157 18,703,055 17,936,472 

Deferred inflows of resources 163,019 191,028 34,833 49,160 197,852 240,188 

Net Investment in capital assets 28,857,721 28,216,943 11,040,846 9,959,018 39,898,567 38,175,961 

Restricted 28,624,410 27,566,390 - - 28,624,410 27,566,390 

Unrestricted (1,365,492) (1,667,574) 4,656,604 5,214,665 3,291,112 3,547,091 

Total net position $ 56,116,639 $ 54,115,759 $ 15,697,450 $ 15,173,683 $ 71,814,089 $ 69,289,442 

The largest portion of the City's net position (55%) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land; infrastructure; buildings and 

improvements; property and equipment), less any related debt still outstanding that was used to acquire those assets. The City uses 

these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City's 

investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must 

be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 

An additional 40% of the City's net position represents resources subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. Consistent 

with the prior fiscal year, as of June 30, 2019, the City is able to report positive balances in both of these categories of net position, 

for both the government as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental and business-type activities. 

During the fiscal year, the Cíty's total net position increased by $2,524,647 over fiscal year 2018-2019. This net increase was comprised 

of an increase of $2,000,880 relating to governmental activíties and an increase of $523,767 was related to business-type activities. 

Information about these changes is summarized on the following page. 

C~ 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Government-wide Financial Analysis_ (continued) 

Changes in Net Position 

Governmental Activities Business-Ty_pe Activities  Tota 

2019 2018 2019 2018 

Progra m Revenues: 

Charges for services 

Operating contributions 

a nd bra nts 

Ca pity I contri buti ons 

and grants 

General Revenues: 

Propertytaxes 

Othertaxes 

Other revenue 

Transfers 

Total 

Expenses: 

General government 

Public works 

Buildingand planning 

Pa rks a nd recreation 

Community development 

Public safety 

Streets and roads 

Interest on tong-term debt 

Water 

Sewer 

-Total expenses 

Change in net position 

Net position-beginning 

Prior period adjustment 

Net position-ending 

$ 4,869,436 $ 4,253,947 $ 3,625,711 $ 3,524,042 $ 8,495,147 $ 7,777,989 

919,574 1,439,898 - - 919,574 1,439,898 

1,680,357 448,235 - - 1,680,357 448,235 

3,420,686 1,911,865 - - 3,420,686 1,911,865 

5,550,468 4,635,006 - - 5,550,468 4,635,006 

455,738 189,480 98,779 51,019 554,517 240,499 

350,600 200,662 (350,600) (200,662) - - 

17,246,859 13,079,093 3,373,890 3,374,399 20,620,749 16,453,492 

4,675,454 4,672,110 - - 4,675,454 4,672,110 

669,870 368,846 - - 669,870 368,846 

604,242 501,953 - - 604,242 501,953 

1,191,281 883,628 - - 1,191,281 883,628 

134,433 188,345 - - 134,433 188,345 

6,379,552 4,705,633 - - 6,379,552 4,705,633 

1,527,160 1,417,386 - - 1,527,160 1,417,386 

63,987 153,031 - - 63,987 153,031 

- - 1,698,031 1,327,678 1,698,031 1,327,678 

- - 1,152,092 1,594,960 1,152,092 1,594,960 

15,245,979 12,890,932 2,850,123 2,922,638 18,096,102 15,813,570 

2,000,880 188,161 523,767 451,761 2,524,647 639,922 

54,115,759 56,157,799 15,173,683 12,491,721 69,289,442 68,649,520 

- (2,230,201) 2,230,201 - - 

$ 56,116,639 $ 54,115,759 $ 15,697,450 $ 15,173,683 $ 71,814,089 $ 69,289,442 

7 
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MAi~AGEMENT'S ~ISCUSSIC~N !-#f~ï~ ANAL f  Sis  
Fiscal year Ended June 30, 2019 

Financial Anal  sis  v►f the fit '~ Funds 

As noted earlier, the City of Greenfield uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal 
requirements. 

C~©vernmental Funds 

The focus of the City's governmental funds ís to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable 
resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City's financial requirements. 

At June 30, 2019, the City's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of X20,793,653, an increase of X1,509,780 
in comparison to the prior year. Unassigned fund balances amounted to X4175,207} at June 30, 2019. The remainder of fund balance 
is not available for new spending because it has already been restricted or is non-spendable. 

General Fund --The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. ~4t June 30, 2019, the fund balance of the General Fund was 
$4,040,341, of which $1,917,228 447%) is non-spendable. As a measure of the General Fund's liquidity, it can be useful to compare the 
unassigned fund balance to total fund expenditures. ~t June 30, the unassigned fund balance was 25.3% of total General Fund 
expenditures. The fund balance of the City's General Fund increased by $853,042 during the 2018-19 fiscal year. 

Changes in fund balances for other major funds are summarïzed below: 

~o► m€~ grant Fund —This special revenue fund accounts for Home Grant loans to eligible citizens for housing rehabïlitation and down 
payment assistance. The balance increased by X19,335. 

ira,~,~ïc Impact Fund —This special revenue fund accounts for Traffic Mitigation C~evelopment Impact Fees that are paid by developers 

to mitigate the traffic impacts of those developments. The balance increased by $565,162. 

General Faeíiítíes impact Fund — This special revenue fund accounts for General Facilities [development Impact Fees that are paid by 
developers to mitigate the impact of those developments to general government facilities. The balànce ïncreased by X23,884. 

~vusinc~ Fund -- This special revenue fund accounts for the administration of low- and moderate-income housing loan repayments 

from former property tax housing increment, and for related expenditures. The balance increased by $15,258, 

up~alementai~TransactiQns t~ Clse Taa~ Fund — tin ï~ovember 3, 2015, a majority of Greenfield voters approved the indefinite extension 
of the 1.01 Transactions and Use Tax that had been due to sunset on September 30, 2017 4formerly mown as "Measure X"}, 
designated as "Measure V." In addition, a majority of Greenfield voters approved at that same election an additional 0,75°l° 
Transactions and Use Tax for a period of 5 years, designated as "Measure w". This special revenue fund is used to specifically account 

for those revenues received from these Transactions and Use Taxes, as well as the related expenditures of these moneys. The balance 
increased by X333,849. 

Capita/ Pr©jests Fund —This fund accounts for capital projects that are of a general nature, and that are not funded by grants or 

enterprise revenues. The balance at June 3o increased $61,477 to X3,112,404. 

~. 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Financïal Analysis of the City's Funds (continued) 

Proprietary Funds 

The City's two enterprise funds provide the same type of information found in the Government-wide Financial Statements, but in 

more detail. Highlights of the annual activity for these funds have been presented above, in the discussion of business-type activities. 

Debt Administration 

At the end of the fiscal year, the City had total governmental activities long-term liabilities outstanding of X10.604,053. This rebresents ... ~., ~ , 
an increase of $983,724 from the prior year balance. At the end of the fiscal year, the City also had total business-type activities long-

term liabilities outstanding of $6,447,783. In total, the City's long-term liabilities increased by $594,409. This increase was due to the 

financing of the citywide surveillance camera system and new digital police radios along with the annual increase in the City's net 

pension liability. Additional information on the City's long-term liabilities can be found in Note 7 on pages 42 through 45, and in Note 
8 on page 45 of this report. The City's pension plan is discussed in Note 11 on pages 47 through 52. Following is a table summarizing 
the City's outstanding long-term liabilities: 

Schedule of Outstanding Long-Term Liabilities 

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total 

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 

Loan payable $ - $ - $ 4,164,372 $ 4,334,475 $ 4,164,372 $ 4,334,475 

Capital lease payable 6,134,954 5,199,082 1,812,966 1,920,013 7,947,920 7,119,095 

Net pension liability 4,063,176 4,068,692 470,445 582,610 4,533,621 4,651,302 

Compensated a bsences 405,923 352,555 - - 405,923 352,555 

$ 10,604,053 $ 9,620,329 $ 6,447,783 $ 6,837,098 $ 17,051,836 $ 16,457,427 

Cash Management 

To obtain flexibility in cash management, the City employs a pooled cash system. Under the pooled cash concept, the City invests idle 

cash in certain eligible securities as constrained by law. Please see Note 3, on pages 35 through 38, for additional discussion of the 
City's cash and investments. 

Ca pits I Assets 

The capital assets of the City are those assets that are used in the performance of the City's functions, including infrastructure assets. 

At June 30, 2019, the City's investment in capital assets for its governmental activities and business-type activíties totaled $34,992,675 

and $18,987,037 (net of accumulated depreciation), respectively. During the current fiscal year, the City's net increase in capital assets 

was $2,233,666. 

The table on the following page presents summary information on the City's capital assets. 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Financial Analysis of the City's Funds (continued) 

Schedule of Capital Assets 

Governmental Activities Business-Tyke Activities Total 

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 

Land $ 6,588,665 $ 6,346,949 $ 323,537 $ 323,537 $ 6,912,202 $ 6,670,486 

Construction in progress 1,287,873 227,440 1,258,634 204,041 2,546,507 431,481 

Buildingand improvements 28,876,558 28,149,744 - - 28,876,558 28,149,744 

Propertyand equipment 3,715,455 3,220,056 28,490,471 27,919,226 32,205,926 31,139,282 

Infrastructure 10,166,318 9,287,736 - - 10,166,318 9,287,736 

Total capital assets 50,634,869 47,231,925 30,072,642 28,446,804 80,707,511 75,678,729 

Accumulated depreciation 15,642,194 13,815,900 11,085,605 10,116,783 26,727,799 23,932,683 

Net capital assets $ 34,992,675 $ 33,416,025 $ 18,987,037 $ 18,330,021 $ 53,979,712 $ 51,746,046 

Additional information on the City's capital assets can be found in Note 5 on pages 40 and 41 of this report. 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

As mentioned above, a detailed budgetary comparison schedule for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 is presented in the Required 

Supplementary Information section. The final budget amounts are different from those presented in the 2018-19 original budget 

document . This is due to changes that occurred after the time that the budget was prepared. The following summarizes the original 
and final budgets, compared with actual results for 2018-19. 

Variance 

Positive 

Original Budget Final Budget Actual (Negative) 

$ 8,635,277 $ 8,635,277 $ 9,001,083 $ 365,806 

8,172,748 8,172,748 8,399,635 (226,887) 

182 182 251,594 251,412 

3,187,299 3,187,299 3,187,299 - 

$ 3,650,010 $ 3,650,010 $ 4,040,341 $ 390,331 

Genera! Fund 

Revenues 

Expenditures 

Other Sources (Uses) 

Fund Balance, beginning 

Fund Balance, ending 

Revenues were $365,806 above estimates. This favorable outcome was due prímarily to the increase in property taxes from cannabis 

industry development and the cannabis tax collection efforts of City staff. Actual expenditures were $226,887 more than budgeted. 

This is a reflection of higher than expected spending, primarily in the categories of public safety, and of building and planning. 

Economic Factors and the Budeet — lookine Forward 

The City persists in pursuing Council's top goals for the community, as was outlined in the 2018-19 original budget. Greenfield ís 

experiencing gains in the local economy, as with property tax revenues and cannabis tax revenues. With the Federal Reserve lowering 

interest rates, that growth could be sustained. With the fallout from the worldwide COVID-19 event, the future looks much more 

uncertain. Nevertheless, the City embraces this challenge, and has taken additional action to ensure that efforts continue to move 

the community in the direction given by the City Council. Here are some of the indicators of this sustained progress: 

Local property values are projected again to show another incremental increase in the coming fiscal year, benefitting the 

General Fund. Property values continue their recovery, and commercial development is experiencing gradual growth, 

especially in the commercial sector with the continued building of the cannabis industry properties. 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Economic Factors and the Budget —Looking Forward (continued) 

One of the two supplemental sales/use tax measures expire in November 2020 and is scheduled to be on the November 

ballot for extension of 3 years. The net revenues from both of these measures has been a very important addition to the 

General Fund operations. As the City pursues commercial and residential development and cannabis industry development 

that will increase tax receipts, these supplemental sales/use taxes allow the City to grow and increase services. 

The continued development of the cannabis industry is slow and somewhat erratic, but is developing positively over time. 

FY2018-19's General Fund rPVPnuPs fell modPratPly short of esti.m..ates d~~P tc~ a lag in the development of the cannabis 
industry in Greenfield. This lag has been extended by a general statewide funding pullback by investors in 2019, but 
subsequent to the close of the FY18-19 fiscal year, funding seems to be flowing again. City management still believes that 
the cannabis industry will provide a significant lift to the General Fund, but that the expected build-out of the industry will 

take another 2-3 years. Additionally, as the industry develops and maximizes its potential, we expect the industry members 

to pressure all government agencies to lower tax rates. 

Y With commercial property annexations on the north and south, and a residential annexation on the west side of Greenfield, 

it is clear that geographically Greenfield is growing. This growth means several things. One is that the property tax base of 
the City will be growing, which means more General Fund revenue. Second, with commercial development (on the north, 

south and east sides of town) comes addition permit fees, sales taxes, impact fees and transient occupancy taxes. These 

additional revenues, along with the cannabis industry fees and taxes, will form the base over the next few years for much of 

the future economic development in the City of Greenfield. 

The COVID-19 event has had widespread financial impact in 2020. Those financial impacts are not expected to hit the City of 

Greenfield quite as hard as other municipalities. There will be financial adjustments to the already adopted FY20-21 budget, 

but City staff fully expects to pursue all of the programs initially envisioned. The first quarter-  (Jul-Sep 2020) will be uncertain, 

but we are confident that the remainder of the year will fall in place. 

The FY2020-2021 Budget will again be a collaborative effort that will take these indicators and other future events into consideration. 

It will again reflect steady and consistent spending for enhanced services that will be supported by strengthening revenues. The easing 
of the economy due to COVID-19, in combination with revenues that will come from future development, will likely allow for somewhat 

greater flexibility in formulating the budget. This Budget is expected to be an effective plan that will continue to uphold the goals of 
the City Council and will likely continue the gradual expansion of the City's core services, especially in the FY2020-2021 year. 

Contacting the City's Financial Management Team 

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors, and creditors with a general overview of the 

financial position of the City of Greenfield and to show the City's accountability for the money it receives. Questions concerning any 

of the information provided in this report, or requests for additional financial information, should be addressed to the City of 

Greenfield, Finance Department, P.O. Box 127, 599  EI  Camino Real, Greenfield, California 93927. 
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L~ of ~~GN~~~~~ 

STATEMENT of NET Pt9SITIC,~N 
June 30, 2019 

Governmental business-Type 
Activities Activities Total 

~~  

Cash and investments $ 16,013,516 $ 5,021,365 $ 21,034,881 
Accounts reCelVable, net 2,998,873 362,276 3,361,149 

Interest receivable 74,974 19,429 94,403 
Notes receivable 9,588,346 - 9,588,346 

Prepaid expenses 37,095 - 37,095 

Inventory-land held for resale 959,000 - 959,000 

Internal balances 1,968,853 ~ 1,968,853} - 

Càpiial assets: 
land 6,588,665 323,537 6,912,202 

Construction in progress 1,287,873 1,258,634 2,546,507 

C~epreciable: 

Oulldln~ and ~mprovementS 28,876,558 - 28,876,558 

Property and equipment 3,715,455 28,490,471 32,265,926 
Infrastructure 10,166,318 - 16,1.66,318 

Accumulated depreciation {15,642,194} ~11,085,605j {26,727,799} 

Total assets 66,633,332 22,421,254 89,654,586 

VE~`I1I1E~ ~.~/~T( ~V VVJ ~~ 11~+J~11:,ri~J 

Loss on refunding 19,997 - 19,997 

Related t© pennons 1,489,040 151.,37'3 1,646,413 

Total deferred outflows of resources 1.509.037 1.51.373 1,660.410 

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
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CITY OF ~REEIVFIELD 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION (Continued) 

June 30, 2019 

Governmental Business-Type 

Activities Activities Total 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable $ 1,005,594 $ 123,604 $ 1,129,198 

Accrued payroll 185,664 22,247 207,911 

Accrued interest payable - 54,657 54,657 

Service deposits 67,400 192,053 259,453 

Noncurrent liabilities: 

Due within one year 620,308 289,319 909,627 

Due in more than one year 9,983,745 6,158,464 16,142,209 

Total liabilities 11,862,711 6,840,344 18,703,055 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Related to pensions 163,019 34,833 197,852 

Total deferred inflows of resources 163,019 34,833 197,852 

NET POSITION 

Net investment in capital assets 28,857,721 11,040,846 39,898,567 

Restricted for: 

Housing 10,608,230 - 10,608,230 

Community development 139,057 - 139,057 

Public safety 2,136,464 - 2,136,464 

Streets and roads 285,412 - 285,412 

Building and planning 3,782,768 - 3,782,768 

Debt service 1,968,853 - 1,968,853 

Public works 9,383,047 - 9,383,047 

Parks and recreation 320,579 - 320,579 

Unrestricted (1,365,492) 4,656,604 3,291,112 

Total net position $ 56,116,639 $ 15,697,450 $ 71,814,089 

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
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CITY OF GREENFIELD 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Program Revenues 

Operating Capital 

Charges for Contributions Contributions 

Expenses Services and Grants and Grants 
Governmental activities: 

General government $ 4,675,454 $ 100,125 $ 13,762 $ - 
Publicworks 669,870 3,579,185 - 665,383 
Building and planning 604,242 761,649 - - 
Parks and recreation 1,191,281 57,749 188,997 - 
Communitydevelopment 134,433 157,095 466,264 - 
Public safety 6,379,552 213,633 250,551 1,014,974 
Streets and roads 1,527,160 - - - 
Interest on long-term debt 63,987 - - - 

Total governmental activities 15,245,979 4,869,436 919,574 1,680,357 

Business-type activities: 

Water 1,698,031 2,078,023 - - 
Sewer 1,152,092 1,547,688 - - 

Total business-type activities 2,850,123 3,625,711 - - 

Total  fi ~ R n4~ ~ n~ ~ Q ag~ ~ a~ C g~ 4 ~~a  fi ~ ~Qn ~~~ -, - -,- - --,- T -,---,--. 

General Revenues 

Taxes: 

Secured and unsecured property taxes 

Sales and use tax 

Transient lodging tax 

Franchise taxes 

Business license tax 

Investment income 
Other 

Transfers 

Total general revenues and transfers 

Change in net position 

Net position -beginning of fiscal year 

Net position -end of fiscal year 

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
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Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position 

Governmental Business-type 

Total 

$ (4,561,567) $ 

3, 574, 698 

157,407 

(944,535) 

488,926 

(4,900,394) 

(1,527,160) 

(63,987)  

- $ (4,561,567) 

- 3,574,698 

- 157,407 

- (944,535) 

- 488,926 

- (4,900,394) 

- (1,527,160) 

- (63,987) 

( /, / /b,bll) 

(7,776,612) 

- (7,776,612) 

379,992 

395,596 

379,992 

395,596 

775,588 775,588 

775,588 (7,001,024) 

3,420,686 3,420,686 

5,398,662 5,398,662 

12,159 12,159 

113,073 113,073 

26,574 26,574 

365,751 98,779 464,530 

89, 987 89,987 

9,777,492 (251,821) 9, 525, 671 

2,000,880 523,767 2,524,647 

~ 56,116,639 $ 15,697,450 $ 71,814,089 
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CITY QF GREENFIELD 
~QVERNMENTAL FUNQS 
BALANCE SHEET 
June 3©, 2Q19 

General 

Traffic Facilities 

Herne Grant Impact impact Housing 

Genera! Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund 

ASSETS 

Cash and investments $ 246,745 $ 135,294 $ 3,765,187 $ - $ 19,59Q 

Acc©ants receivab{e, net 2,14Q,9Q6 - - - - 

Interest receivable 2,Q2Q 524 14,581 - 76 

Nfltes receivable - 6,013,865 - - 3,479,881 

Prepaid expenditures 21,527 - - - - 

©ue frflm Other funds 7QQ,7Q2 - - - - 

Inventflry-land held far resale - - - _ g59,QQQ 

Advances receivable 1,895,7Q1 - - - -  

Tota{  assets $ 5,QQ7,6Q1 $ 6,149,683 $ 3,782,765 $ - $ 4,458,547 

LIABILITIES, QEFERRE© INFL©tNS t3F RESOURCES, 

AIU© FUIVa BALANCES 

liabi{hies 

Accounts payable $ 8Q6,584 $ - $ - $ - $ - 

Accrued paysll 93,276 - - - - 

Service deposits 67,4QQ - - - - 

Due to other funds - - - - _ 

Advances payable - - - 1,895,7Q1 - 

Tfltal liabi{hies 967,260 - - 1,595,7Q1 - 

Deferred Inflows flf Resflurces 

Unavai{able revenues - 6,Q13,865 - - 3,479,881 

Tfltal deferred inflflws of resources - ó,Q13,865 - - 3,479,881 

Fund Balances 

Nonspendable 

Prepaid expenditures 21,527 - - - - 

Advances receivable 1,895,7Q1 - - - - 

Restricted 

Public safety - - - - _ 

Hflusing - 135,818 - - 978,666 

Community deve{opment - - - - - 

Streets and roads - - - - _ 

Bui{ding and planning - - 3,782,768 - - 

Debt service - - - - _ 

Public wflrks - - - - _ 

Parks and recreation - - - - _ 

Unassigned 2,123,113 - - (1,895,7Q1) - 

Tfltal fund balances 4,Q4Q,341 135,818 3,782,768 (1,895,7Q1) 978,666 

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, 

and fund balances $ 5,QQ7,6Q1 $ 6,149,683 $ 3,782,768 $ - $ 4,458,547 

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
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Supplemental 

Transacti©ns and Other T©tal 

Use Tax Capital Pr©jests Governmental G©vernmenta! 

Fund Fund Funds Funds 

$ 1,760,063 $ 3,125,137 $ 6,958,500 16,013,516 

337,226 2,798 517,943 2,998,873 

7,055 12,093 38,625 74,974 

- - 94,600 9,588,346 

- - 15,568 37,095 

- - - 7©0,702 

- - - 959,00© 

- - 1,968,853 3,864,554 

$ 2,104,344 $ 3,140,028 9,594,089 ~ 34,237,060 

$ 7,912 $ 27,624 $ 163,474 $ 1,005,594 

53,352 - 39,036 185,664 

- - - 67,400 

- - 700,702 700,702 

- - 1,895,701 

61,264 27,624 903,212 3,855,061 

- - 94,600 9,588,346 

- - 94,600 9,588,346 

- - 15,568 37,095 

- - - 1,895,701 

2,043,080 - 93,384 2,136,464 

- - - 1,114,484 

- - 44,457 44,457 

- - 285,412 285,412 

- - - 3,782,768 

- - 1,968,853 1,968,853 

- 3,112,404 6, 270, 643 9, 383,047 

- - 320,579 320,579 

- - (402,619} {175,207} 

2,043,080 3,112,404 8,596,277 20,793,653 

$ 2,104,344 ~ 3,140,028 $ 9,594,089 $ 34,237,060 
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CITY OF GREENFIELD 
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS -BALANCE SHEET 

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

June 30, 2019 

Total fund balances -governmental funds $ 20,793,653 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are 

different because: 

In governmental funds, only current assets are reported. In the statement of net position, 

all assets are reported, including capital assets and accumulated depreciation: 

Capital assets at historical cost $ 50,634,869 

Accumulated depreciation (15,642,194) 

Net 34,992,675 

Ir. . ,. r .-....~....~. +... I ~.. r ,J ~ .,. ,.. , ,..... ~ ,J .. I . ~- ,-, a. L.. ,a .. ,. ~  i.  L..., ~ ' I .. L., I ,. 
III gVVCI I IIIICI IIQI I  UI  IUD, I CVCI Ille ÍJ rCI.VgÍ lÍLCU lJÍ Ily lV ll IC C1llCl Il llldl ÍJ aVaIIdIJIC, 

meaning it will be collected soon enough after the end of the period to finance 

expenditures of that period. Receivables for revenues that are earned but unavailable 

are deferred until the period in which the revenues become available. In the government- 

wide statements, revenue is recognized when earned, regardless of availability. 

The amount of unavailable revenues that were deferred in governmental funds, but 

are recognized in the government-wide statements, is: 9,588,346 

In governmental funds, deferred outflows and inflows of resources relating to 

pensions are not reported because they are applicable to future periods. In the 

statement of net position, deferred outflows and inflows of resources relating to 

pensions are reported. 1,326,021 

In governmental funds, only current liabilities are reported. In the statement of 

net position, all liabilities, including long-term liabilities are reported. Long-term 

liabilities relating to governmental activities consist of: 

Capital leases payable $ 6,134,954 

Net pension liability 4,063,176 

Compensated absences payable 405,923 

Total (10,604,053) 

In governmental funds, loss on refunding is recognized as an expenditure in the 

period incurred. In the government-wide statements, loss on refunding is 

amortized over the life of the debt. 19,997 

Total net position -governmental activities $ 56,116,639 

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
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CITY OF GREENFIELD 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019 

General 

Traffic Facilities 

Home Grant Impact Impact Housing 

General Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund 

REVENUES 

Taxes and assessments $ 5,333,706 $ - $ - $ - $ - 

Licenses and permits 541,183 - - - - 

Fines and penalties 50,819 - - - - 

Use of money and property 12,466 2,661 74,127 - 386 

Intergovernmental revenues 104,259 - - - - 

Charges for services 2,885,964 17,823 491,035 23,884 14,872 

Other revenues 72,686 - - - - 

Total revenues 9,001,083 20,484 565,162 23,884 15,258 

EXPENDITURES 

Current: 

General government 4,173,949 - - - - 

Publicworks 257,257 - - - - 

Building and planning 604,242 - - - - 

Parks and recreation 353,738 - - - - 

Communitydevelopment - 1,149 - - - 

Publicsafety 2,959,525 - - - - 

Streets and roads 50,924 - - - - 

Capital outlay - - - - - 

Debtservice: 

Principal - - - - - 

Interest - - - - - 

Total expenditures 8,399,635 1,149 - - - 

Excess of revenues over (under) 

expenditures 601,448 19,335 565,162 23,884 15,258 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES; 

Transfers in ~ 846,410 - - - ~ - 

Transfers out (594,816) - - - - 

Proceeds from capital lease - - - - - 

Total other financing sources (uses) 251,594 - - - - 

Net change in fund balances 853,042 19,335 565,162 23,884 15,258 

Fund balances, beginning of fiscal year 3,187,299 116,483 3,217,606 (1,919,585) 963,408 

Fund balances, end of fiscal year $ 4,040,341 $ 135,818 $ 3,782,768 $ (1,895,701) $ 978,666 

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
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Supplemental 

Transactions and Other Total 

Use Tax Capital Projects Governmental Governmental 

Fund Fund Funds Funds 

$ 2,464,177 $ - $ 1,174,876 $ 8,972,759 

- - - 541,183 

- - - 50,819 

35,865 61,477 142,769 329,751 

- - 2,088,953 2,193,212 

- - 121,779 3,555,357 

- - 5,118 77,804 

2,500,042 61,477 3,533,495 15,720,885 

- - - 4,173, 949 

- - 394,432 651,689 

- - - 604,242 

136,922 - 345,463 836,123 

119,193 - - 120,342 

1,835,649 - 1,468,748 6,263,922 

- - 521,806 572,730 

74,429 1,935,835 200,329 2,210,593 

- - 435,133 435,133 

- - 63,987 63,987 

2,166,193 1,935,835 3,429,898 15,932,710 

333,849 (1,874,358) 103,597 (211,825) 

- 765,159 697,066 2,308,635 

- - (1,363,219) (1,958,035) 

- 1,170,676 200,329 1,371,005 

- 1,935,835 (465,824) 1,721,605 

333,849 61,477 (362,227) 1,509,780 

1,709,231 3,050,927 8,958,504 19,283,873 
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CITY OF GREENFIELD 

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Net change in fund balances -governmental funds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are 

different because: 

In governmental funds, capital outlays are reported as expenditures. However, in the 

statement of activities, the cost of those assets are allocated over their estimated 

useful lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which additions to capital 

outlay of $2,387,970 was more than depreciation expense $(1,826,294} in the period: 

In governmental funds, the issuance or proceeds of long-term notes receivable 

provides current financial resources and therefore, are recognized as expenditures 

or revenues, respectively. 1n the government-wide statements, issuance or 

proceeds are reported as increases or reductions in assets. respectively. This 

amount is the net change in long-term notes receivable: 

In governmental funds, donated capital assets are not reported because they do not 

affect current financial resources. In the government-wide statements, donated capital 

assets are reported as revenue and as increases to capita) assets, at their fair 

value on the date of donation. The fair value of capital assets donated was: 

In governmental funds, pension costs are recognized when employer contributions are 

made. In the statement of activities, pension costs are recognized on the accrual basis. 

This year, the difference between accrual-basis pension costs and actual employer 

contributions was: 

In governmental funds, repayments of long-term debt are reported as expenditures. 

1n the government-wide statements, repayments of long-term debt are reported as 

reductions of liabilities. 

In governmental funds, proceeds from debt are recognized as other financing sources. 

In the government-wide statements, proceeds from debt are reported as increases 

to liabilities. Amounts recognized in governmental funds as proceeds from debt, 

net of iss~.ae premium or discount, was: 

1, 509, 780 

561,676 

160,400 

1,014,974 

(253,593) 

435,133 

(1, 371,005) 

In the government-wide statements, any deferred loss from debt refunding is amortized as 

interest over the life of the debt. Amortization of deferred loss from debt refunding, for the 

period is: (3,117} 

In the statement of activities, compensated absences are measured by the amounts 

earned during the fiscal year. In governmental funds, expenditures for these items 

are measured by the amount of financial resources used (essentially the amount 

paid). This fiscal year, compensated absences earned exceeded the amount used by: 

Change in net position -governmental activities 

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
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CITY OF GREENFIELD 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

June 30, 2019 

ASSETS 

Current assets: 

Cash and investments 

Accounts receivable, net 

Interest receivable 

Total current assets 

Capital assets: 

Land 

Construction in progress 

Property and equipment 

Total capital assets 

Less accumulated depreciation 
_ 

Total capital assets (net of 

accumulated depreciation) _ 
Total assets 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Related to pensions 

Total deferred outflows of resources 

LIABILITIES 

Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable 

Accrued payroll 

Accrued interest payable 

Service deposits 

Noncurrent liabilities due within one year _ 
Total current liabilities 

Noncurrent liabilities: 

Advances payable 

Net pension liability 

Capital leases payable 

Notes payable _ 
Total noncurrent liabilities _ 
Total liabilities 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Related to pensions _ 
Total deferred inflows of resources 

NET POSITION 

Net investment in capital assets 

Unrestricted 

Water Fund Sewer Fund Totals 

$ 3,776,880 $ 1,244,485 $ 5,021,365 

206,925 155,351 362,276 

14,614 4,815 19,429 

3,998,419 1,404,651 5,403,070 

265,409 58,128 323,537 

314,605 944,029 1,258,634 

13,576,700 14,913,771 28,490,471 

14;156;714 15;915;928 30;072;642 

(5,146,204) (5,939,401) (11,085,605) 

9,010,510 9,976,527 18,987,037 

13,008,929 11,381,178 24,390,107 

80,318 71,055 151,373 

80,318 71,055 151,373 

90,856 32,748 123,604 

11,509 10,738 22,247 

32,319 22,338 54,657 

103,413 88,640 192,053 

217,608 71,711 289,319 

455,705 226,175 681,880 

964,891 1,003,962 1,968,853 

249,617 220,828 470,445 

1,699,109 1,699,109 

2,358,653 1,630,257 3,988,910 

5,272,270 2,855,047 8,127,317 

5,727,975 3,081,222 8,809,197 

18,482 16,351 34,833 

18,482 

~~~n ~no 

16,351 

~ ~~n ~a~ 

34,833 

~ ~ nnn Qnc 

Total net position $ 7,342,790 $ 8,354,660 $ 15,697,450 

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
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CITY OF GREENFIELD 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019 

OPERATING REVENUES: 

Charges for services 

Connection fees 

Other operating revenues 

Total operating revenues 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 

Salaries and benefits 

Office expense 

Contractual services 

Utilities and communications 

Operating supplies 

Vehicle and equipment maintenance 

Professional development 

Other 

Depreciation 

Total operating expenses 

Operating income 

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 

Interest income 

Interest expense 

Total non-operating revenues (expenses) 

Income before transfers 

Transfers out 

Change in net position 

Net position -July 1 

Net position -June 30 

Water Fund Sewer Fund Totals 

$ 2,026,604 $ 1,547,688 $ 3,574,292 

17,297 - 17,297 

34,122 - 34,122 

2,078,023 1,547,688 3,625,711 

449,088 293,358 742,446 

32,860 13,185 46,045 

206;  490 118;  713 325;  203 

177,200 86,437 263,637 

58,833 27,509 86,342 

29,225 69,904 99,129 

2,325 1,744 4,069 

23,880 12,680 36,560 

529,805 439,017 968,822 

1,509,706 1,062,547 2,572,253 

568,317 485,141 1,053,458 

74,298 24,481 98,779 
(1 RR ~~~1 lR4 Sd~, l (777 R7nl 

(179,091) 

, 4~4,LyU 4LU,U / / ó /4,~b / 

(170,400) (180,200) (350,600) 

283,890 239,877 523,767 

7,058,900 8,114,783 15,173,683 

$ 7,342,790 $ 8,354,660 $ 15,697,450 

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
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CITY OF GREENFIELD 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

Receipts from customers 

Payments to suppliers 

Payments to employees 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 

Acquisition of capital assets 

Principal payments on long-term debt 

Interest paid on long-term debt 

Advances from other funds 

Net cash (used) by capital and related financing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 

Transfers to other funds 

Net cash (used) by noncapital financing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 

Interest income 

Net cash provided by investing activities 

Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents -July 1 

Cash and cash equivalents -June 30 

RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND INVESTMENTS TO THE STATEMENT OF 

NET POSITION: 

Cash and investments 

Total cash and cash equivalents 

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
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Water Fund Sewer Fund Totals 

$ 2,030,745 $ 1,540,263 $ 3,571,008 

(460,101) (403,095) (863,196) 

(426,655) (386,992) (813,647) 

1,143,989 750,176 1,894,165 

(829,218) (796,620) (1,625,838) 

(207,629) (69,521) (277,150) 

(189,645) (90,458) (280,103) 

(92,289) (55,373) (147,662) 

(1,318,781) (1,011,972) (2,330,753) 

(170,400) (180,200) (350,600) 

(170,400) (180,200) (350,600) 

78,078 19,666 97,744 

78,078 19,666 97,744 

(267,114) (422,330) (689,444) 

4,043,994 1,666,815 5,710,809 

$ 3,776,880 $ 1,244,485 $ 5,021,365 

$ 3,776,880 $ 1,244,485 $ 5,021,365 

$ 3,776,880 $ 1,244,485 $ 5,021,365 



CITY CaF GREENFIELD 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS (Continued) 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to 

net cash provided by operating activities: 

Operating income 

Adjustments to reconcile operating income 

to net cash provided by 

operating activities: 

Depreciation expense 

Change in assets deferred outflows, liabilities, and deferred inflows: 

Receivables, net 

Deferred outflows 

Accounts payable 

Accrued payroll 

Net pension liability 

Deferred inflows 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Water Fund Sewer Fund Totals 

$ 568,317 $ 485,141 $ 1,053,458 

529,805 439,017 968,822 

(47,278) (7,425) (54,703) 

(1,FRg) 51,Q33 49,345 

70,712 (72,923) (2,211) 

3,515 2,431 5,946 

21,382 {133,547) (112,165) 

(776) (13,551) (14,327) 

$ 1,143,989 $ 750,176 $ 1,894,165 

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
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~ITY ~► ~ ~R~~N~f~t~.C~►  
STATEMENT QF FI©UCIAI~Y NET PQSITI~N 

June 30, 2ïJ19 

Private 

Purpose 

Trust Funds 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Interest receivable 

Note receivable 

Prepaid insurance 

Total assets 

LIA~ILITIES  

Accounts payable 

Accrued interest payable 

Unearned revenue 

Noncurrent liabilities: 

due within one year 

pue in more than one year 

Total liabilities 

QEFERREi~ INFL~iW ~JF RESt~URCES 

C~eferred gain on debt refunding 

Total deferred infl©w of resources 

NET PQS iTI CAN 

Unrestricted 

Successor 

Agency 

$ $93,994 

3,459 

2,135 

144,444 

1,044,032 

2,150 

252,492 

735,491 

932,923 

1E,213,463 

18,136,519 

171,048 

171,048 

~ {17,263,535} 

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
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~~ ~F Gii~GIV~~~~~ 

STATEMENT 4F CHANGES IN FIQUCIARY NET P©SITI~N 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 34, 2019 

Ài7QITIQtVS: 

Taxes 

Investment earnings 

Total additions 

®E©UCTI©NS: 

Community development 

Interest expense 

Total deductions 

Change in net position 

Total net position-beginning 

Total net position-ending 

Private 

Purpose 

Trust Funds 

successor 

Agency 

$ 1,41,586 

17',720 

1,436,306 

4,905 

550,920 

555,825 

8~0,4~1 

{1$,144,016} 

$ X17,263,535) 

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
2$ 
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A. ~~~Cirtln~ ~ntlty 

The reporting entity is the City of Greenfield. There are  na  component units included in this report that meet the reporting 
entity definition criteria of GASB Statement No. 14, 7"he Financialepartingntity, asamended by GASB Statement  Na.  3, GASB 
Statement No. 61., and GASB statement  Na.  B. 

B. Basis of Presentation 

The City's basic financial statements are prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the Uníted 
States of America. The Governmental Accountim Standards Beard is the acknowledged standard setting body for establishing 
accounting and financial reporting standards followed by governmental entities in the United states of America. 

C~dvernment-vide Statements 

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activitíes display information about the primarygovernment the City} and 
íts component unit. These statements include the financïal actvitïes of the overall City government, except fir fiducíary 
activities. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting of internal activities. Government activities generally 
are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange transactions. 

The statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each segment of the 
City's governmental activities. C~irect expenses are these that are specifically associated with a program or function and, 
therefore, are clearly identifiable to a function. Program revenues include {a}charges paid by the recipients of goods ar services 
offered by the programs, {b}grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational needs of a program, and (c} 
fees, grants, and contributions that are restricted to financing the acguisitan ar construction of capital assets. Revenues that 
are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues. 

~`r~nd Financial Statements 

The fund financial statements provide information about the City's funds. separate statements for each fund category-
gc~vernrnental,,~rc~~rietarand d~rciarg~-are presented. The emphasis offend financial statements is an mayor individual funds, 

each of which is displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor 
funds. 

Proprietary fund financial statements include a Statement of Net Position, a Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in 
Net Position, and a statement of Cash Flaws for all proprietary funds. 

Proprietary funds and fiduciary funds are accounted far using the "ecc►nomic resources"measurement focus and the accrual 
basis of accounting. Accordingly, aN assets and liabilities whether current or non-current} are included on the statement of Net 
Position. The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position presents increases (revenues} and decreases 
expenses) in fatal net position. Under the accrual basis of accountim, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are 

earned, while expenses are recognized in the period in which liability is incurred. 

Operating revenues in the proprietary funds are those revenues that are generated from the primary operation of the fund. Alf 
other revenues are reported as non-operating revenues. Operating expenses are those expenses that are essential to the 
primary operations of the fund. All other expenses are reported as non-operating expenses. 

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity or as an agent far individuals, private 
organizations, other governmental units, and/or other funds. Fiduciary funds use the full accrual basis of accounting or 
reporting receivables and payables. Fiduciary funds are reported in the fund financial statements but are not included for 
government-wide reporting purposes. 
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c~T~ ~ ~~~~N~i~~~ 
NC?TES Tt~ ~ASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

~une 39, 2019 ~ 

~ ~~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~~ . -. 

Major Funds 

gAS6 Statement No. 34 defines major funds and requires that the City's major funds are identified and presented separately in 
the fund financial statements. All other funds, called non-major funds, are combined and reported in a single column in the 
Fund Statements as Other governmental Funds, regardless of their fund-type. 

Major funds are defined as funds that have either assets, liabilities, revenues, orexpenditures/expenses equal to ten percent of 
their fund-type total. The general Fund is always a major fund. The City may also voluntarily select other funds it believes 
should be presented as major funds. 

The City reported the following major governmental funds in the accompanying financial statements: 

genera/Fund--This fund accounts for all financial resources except those to be accounted for in another fund. !t is the general 
operating fund of the City. 

Hame Gra~tFun--This fund accounts for the loans provided to eligible citizens for housing rehabilitation and down payment 
assistance. 

Traffic Impact Fund—This fund accounts for receipt of Traffic Mitigation Development Impact Fees and their expenditures on 
projects to mitigate traffic impacts. 

general Facilities Impact Fund — This fund accounts for receipt of General Facilities Development Impact Fees and their 
expenditures on projects to expand governmental facilities. 

Housing Fund -- This fund accounts for the receipt of the low-moderate income housing loan repayments and related low- 
moderate income housing expenditures. 

Supplemental Transaction and Use Tax Fund— This fund accounts for receipt of voter-approved transactions and use tax and 
their expenditures to mitigate the reduction of, and maintain the continuation of, vital City services. 

capital Pr©,sects Fund— This fund accounts for resources used for the acquisition of various major capital improvements. 

The City reported the following major proprietary funds: 

water Fund-- This fund accounts for the activities of providing water to residents of the City. 

.Sewer Fund—This fund accounts for the activities associated with the sewage treatment plant, pumping stations, and collections 
systems. 

~ 
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CITY t~F GREENFIEL~►  
N©TES TÚ BASIC FINANCIAL STATEIVIENTS 
June 30, 2019 

NC)TE 1 -- SUMMARY C?F SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (C©ntinued~ 

~ 

E. 

Basis of Accounting 

The government-wide, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds financial statements are reported using the ec©namicresaurces 
measorementfcacosand thc fo1/accrualhasisof accounting. Revenues are recorded when earnedand expenses are recorded at 

the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place. 

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to aecember 1,1989, generally are followed in both 
government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict 
guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. Governments also have the option of following subsequent private-
sectorguidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation. The City has elected not 
to follow subsequent private-sector guidance. 

Governmental funds are reported using the current financial resaorces measurement focus and the mc~dífïed accrue/basis of 

accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when measura,~le and available. The City considers all revenues 

reported in the governmental funds to be available íf the revenues are collected within sixty days after fiscal year end. 
Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability ís incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term 
debt, claims and judgments, and compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent that they have 
matured. 

Capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of long-term debt and acquisitions 
under capital leases are reported as ether fínancín~seorces. 

Non-exchange transactions, in which the City gives or receives value without directly receiving or giving equal value in exchange, 
include property taxes, grants, entitlements, and donations. Can an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in 
the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year 
in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. 

Other revenues susceptible to accrual include other taxes, intergovernmental revenues, interest, and charges for services. 

Grant revenues are recognized ïn the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements are met. Under the terms of grant 
agreements, the City rrray fund certain programs with acombination ofcost-reimbursement grants, categorical block grants, and 
general revenues. Thus, both restricted and unrestricted net assets may be available to finance program 
expenditures/expenses. The City's policy is to first apply restricted grant resources to such programs, followed by general 

revenues, if necessary. 

Property Taxes 

California Constitution Article XIII A limits the combined property tax rate to one percent of a property's assessed valuation. 

Additional taxes may be imposed with voters' approval. Assessed value is calculated at one hundred percent ofa property`s fair 

value, as defined by Article X111 A, and may be increased no more than two percent per year, unless a change in ownership or 

new construction occurs. The State legislature has determined the method of distributing the one percent tax levy among the 
various taxing jurisdictions. 

Property tax revenues are recognized in the fiscal year for which taxes have been levied and collected within sixty days offiscal 
year end. Property taxes are billed and collected as fellows: 

Secured Unsecured 

January 1 January 3 

July 1 July 1 

November 1 {50%) August 1 

February 1 {SÜ%} 
pecember 1Q (Nov.) August 31 

April 10 {Feb.) 
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~tTY t~~ GREENFIELC~►  
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2019 

I~lQTE 1— SUMMARY ~~ SlGNlFlCANT ACCC)UlUTING PCiLlCIES (C©ntinued) 

F. Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements ïn conformïty with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America requires management to mace estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts Of assets, liabilities, 
revenues, expenditures or expenses as appropriate. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

G. Cash Equiva#ants 

For purposes of the statement of cash flews, the City considers al! highly liquid investment instruments purchased with 
maturity of three months or #ass to be cash equivalents. 

[:~  C~eferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources 

Pursuant to GASB Statement No. 63, "FinancÍal ~eportingofl~e~erred ~Jutf/aws orRes©urces, L~e~erred/nrlaws nrResources, and 
Net Posítí©n," and ~ASB Statement No. 65, "/tams Prevíausly Reparted as Assets and Lia,bilÍtíes, "the City recognizes deferred 

outflows and inflows of resources. 

In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Position wil#sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. 

A deferred outflow of resources is defined as a consumption of net position by the government that is applicable to a future 

reporting period. The City has two items that qualify for reporting in this category; refer to Note 9 and Note 11 for detailed 
listings of the deferred outflows of resources the City has reported. 

In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position and the governmental Funds —Balance Sheet will sometimes report a 

separate section for deferred inflows Of resources. A deferred inflow of resources is defined as an acquisition of net position by 

the City that is applicable to a future reporting period. The City has two items which qualify for reporting in this category; refer 
to Note 6 and Note 11 for detailed listings of the deferred inflows of resources the City has reported. 

a,pital Assets 

A## capita# assets are valued at historica# cost or estimated historical cost if actual historica# cost is not avai#able. Contributed 
capital assets are valued at their estimated fair value on the date contributed. The City's policy is to capita#ize al#capital assets 
with costs exceeding certain minimum thresholds of X2,500 and with useful lives exceeding one year. 

With the implementation of GASB Statement No. 34, the City was not required to record infrastructure assets existing or 
acquired prior to duly 1, 2001. The City elected not to record such infrastructure assets. The City may elect to record such 
infrastructure assets in the future. 

The purpose of depreciation is to spread costs of capital assets equitably among all users over the lives of these assets. The 

amount charged to depreciation expense each fiscal year represents that fiscal year's pro rata share of the cost of capital assets. 

ASB Statement No. 34 requires that all capital assets with limited useful lives be depreciated over their estimated useful lives. 
depreciation is provided using the straight line method, which means the cost of the asset is divided by its expected useful life in 
years and the result is charged to expense each fiscal year until the asset is fully depreciated. The City has assigned the useful 
lives listed below to capital assets: 

Uti#ity #fines and equipment 10-40 years 

Building and improvements 10-40 years 

Infrastructure 10-40 years 

Property and equipment 5-10 years 

Vehicles 5 years 

J. Unearned Revenue 

Unearned revenue arises when assets are received before revenue recognition criteria have been satisfied. (Srants and 
entitlements received before eligibility requirements are met are recorded as unearned revenue. 
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CITY C~~ GREEN~IELI~ 
~lt~TES Ti~ BASIC FII~JANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 3t~, 2(J19 

f~t3TE 1-- SUMMARY ~~ SIGNIFlCAtVT ACCtJUNTIN~ PQLICIES (Coniinued) 

K. Cempensated Absences 

In camplionce with Governmental Accounting Standards Beard Statement iVo.16, the City has established a liability for accrued 

sick leave and vacation in re#event funds. For governments # type funds, the current liabïlity appears in the respective funds. A## 
vacation paid is accrued when incurred ín the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. This liability is set up 
for the current employees at the current rates of pay. If sick leave and vacation are net used by the employee during the term 
of employment, a portion of the compensation is payable to the employee at the time of retirement. such compensation Ïs 

calculated at the employee's prevailing rate at the time of retirement or termination. Each fiscal year, an adjustment to the 

liability is made based on pay rate changes and adjustments for the current portion. The General Fund is primarily responsible 
for the repayment of the governmental portion of compensated absences. 

L. Pensions 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liabi#ity and deferred Duff#ows~inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension 

expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the City of Greenfield's California Public Employee's Retirement system 

{CaIPERS~ plans {P#ens}and additions to/deductions from the Plans' fiduciary net position have been determined on the same 

basis as they are reported by CoIPERs. Far this purpose, benefit payments {including refunds of employee contríbutionsj are 
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. 

IVI. Fund Balances 

Fund ba#antes of the governments#funds are classified as follows: 

Nonspendable Fund Bo#once —represents amounts that cannot be spent because they are either not in spendoble form {such as 
inventory or prepaid insurance} or are #ego#ly required to remain intact {such as notes receïvable or principal of a permanent 

fund). 

Restricted Fund Balance -- represents amounts that are constrained by external parties, constitutional provisions or enab#ing 

legislotion. 

Committed Fund Balance —represents amounts that can only be used for a specific purpose because of o formal action by the 
City's governing board . Committed amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the gavernir~g board removes those 
constraints by taking the same type of formal action. Committed fund ba#once amounts may be used for other purposes with 

appropriate due process by the governing board. Commitments are typically done through adoption and amendment of the 
budget. Committed fund balance amounts differ from restricted balances ín that the constraints on their use do not come from 
outside parties, constïtutional provisions, or enabling legislation. 

Assigned Fund Balance — represents amounts that the City intends to use for a specïfic purpose, but that do not meet the criteria 

to be classified  os  restricted or commïtted. Intent may be stipulated by the governing board or by an officia# or body to which 
the governing board delegates the authority. Specific amounts that are not restricted or committed ïn a special revenue, capital 

projects, debt service, or permanent fund are assigned for purposes in accordance with the nature of their fund type or the 
fund's primary purpose. Assignments within the genera # fund convey that the intended use of those amounts is for a specific 

purpose that is narrower than the general purpose of the City. 

Unassigned Fund Balance — represents amounts which are unconstrained in that they may be spent for any purpose. C~n1y the 
genera# fund reports a positive unassigned fund bo#once. ether governmental funds might report a negative balance in this 

classification because of overspending far specific purposes for which amounts had been restricted, committed or assigned. 

When on expenditure is incurred for a purpose for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is available, the City 
considers restricted funds to hove been spent first. When an expenditure ïs incurred for which committed, assigned, or 

unassigned fund balances are availab # e, the City considers amounts to have been spent first out of committed funds, then 

assigned funds, and finally unassigned funds. 
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CITY OF GREENFIELD 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2019 

NOTE 1 —SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued] 

N. Net Position 

GASB Statement No. 63 requires that the difference between assets added to the deferred outflows of resources, and liabilities 

added to the deferred inflows of resources, be reported as net position. Net  position is classified as either net investment in 

capital assets, restricted, or unrestricted. 

Net posítion that is net investment in capital assets, consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, and reduced by 

the outstanding principal of related debt. Restricted net position is the portion of net position that has external constraints 

placed on it by creditors, grantors, contributors, laws, or regulations of othergovernments, orthrough constitutional provisions 
or enabling legislations. Unrestricted net position consists of net position that does not meet the definition of net investment in 

capital assets or restricted net position. 

O. Future Accounting Pronouncements 

GASB Statements listed below will be implemented in future financial statements: 

Statement No. 84 "Fiduciary Activities" The provisions of this statement are effective 

forfiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019. 

Statement No. 87 "Leases" 

Statement No. 89 "Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred 

before the End of a Construction 

Period" 

Statement No. 90 "Majority Equity Interests-an 

Amendment of GASB Statements No. 

14 and No. 61 " 

The provisions of this statement are effective 

for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2021. 

The provisions of this statement are effective 

for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2020. 

The provisions of this statement are effective 

for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019. 

Statement No. 91 "Conduit Debt Obligations" The provisions of this statement are effective 

for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2021. 

NOTE 2 —STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY 

A. Bud~etarY Information 

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 

for governmental funds. The City's budget ordinances requires that in April of each fiscal year, the City Manager must submit a 

preliminary budget that includes projected expenditures and the means of financing them, to the City Council, for the fiscal year 

commencing the following July 1. As modified during public study sessions, the preliminary budget becomes the proposed 
budget. Following public hearings on the proposed budget, the final annual budget is adopted by the City Council in June forthe 
following fiscal year. After adoption of the final budget, transfers of appropriations within a general fund department, orwithin 

other funds, can be made by the City Manager. Budget modifications between funds; increases or decreases to a fund's overall 

budget; transfers between general fund departments; or transfers that affect capital projects, must be approved by the City 

Council. Numerous properly authorized amendments are made during the fiscal year. 

Budgetary control is enhanced by integrating the budget into the general ledger accounts. Encumbrance accounting is 

employed (e.g., purchase orders) to avoid expenditures over the budget. In general, encumbrances outstanding at fiscal year 

end are automatically rebudgeted in the following fiscal year. 
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CITY OF GREENFIELD 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2019 

NOTE 2 -- STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY (Continued) 

B. Excess of expenditures over appropriations in individual funds are as follows: 

Major Fund: 

General Fund $ 226,887 

Supplemental Transactions and UseTax Fund $ 67,247 

C. Deficit Fund Balances 

Major Fund: 

A defÍl Ít fÜn d balaÍllC Úf .~1,Ó9~,7o1 C1lÍJtJ ÍÍI tIÍC GCÍICraÍ FaI,ÍIÍtÍeJ IlÍlpal t FÜÍId. Th ÍJ fÜÍld balaÍlle defÍl.lt ÍJ dÜe to th e l~..Ít'y' 

incurring costs in advance of receiving revenue. The City expects to fund the deficit through future revenues and/ortransfers of 

funds. 

Nonmajor Funds: 

A deficit fund balance of $126,109 exists in the Police Impact Fund. This fund balance deficit is due to the City incurring costs in 

advance of receiving revenue. The City expects to fund the deficit through future revenues and/ortransfers of funds. 

A deficit fund balance of $8,198 exists inthe CSA-74 Fund. This fund balance deficit is due to the City incurring costs in advance 

of receiving revenue. The City expects to fund the deficit through future revenues and/ortransfers of funds. 

A deficit fund balance of $382,247 exists in the Fire Fund. This fund balance deficit is due to the City incurring costs in advance of 

receiving revenue. The City expects to fund the deficit through future revenues and/ortransfers of funds. 

NOTE 3 -- CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

The composition of cash and investments as of June 30, 2019, by fund, is as follows: 

Available 
For 

Operations Restricted  Tota  I 

Genera I Fund $ 246,745 $ - $ 246,745 

Speci a I Revenue Funds 12,641,634 - 12,641,634 

Capital Project Fund 3,125,137 - 3,125,137 

Proprietary Funds 5,.021,365 - 5,021,365 

Fiduciary Funds - 893,994 893,994  

Tota  I $ 21,034,881 $ 893,994 $ 21,928,875 

Cash and investments at June 30, 2019, consisted of the following: 

Cash  i  n banks and on hand $ 5,431,323 

Investments 15,603,558 

Total cash and investments, statement of net position 21,034,881 

Cash and investments with fiscal agent 60 

Investments 893,934 

Total cash and investments, statement of fiduciary net position 893,994  

Tota  I $ 21,928,875 
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CITY t~~ CR~EN~IE~.~ 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June BQ, 2íJ19 

NC~TE 3 -~ ~ASH AtUt~ IRIVESTMENTS ~C©ntinued) 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board ~GASB} Statement No. 72, "Fair ~lalue Measurements and Application," provides the 
framework for measuring fair value. The framework categorïzes a fair value hierarchy that is based on the valuation inputs used tt 
measure the fair value of the asset. Leve! 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets, level 2 inputs are significant 
other observable inputs; Level ~ inputs are significant unobservable inputs. The City has the following recurring fair value measurements 
as of June 3tJ, 2x19: 

Investments b fair value 

ï7ebt securities: 

Negotiable certificates ofdeposit 

Total investments measured at fairvalue 

Fair value Measurement Usïng 

Quoted Prices in Significant 

Active Markets Other Significant 

for i dentica l 
.. ~_ , 

úbservaoie Linouservapie 

Assets Inputs Inputs 

Total (Level 1y {Level 2~ (Level 3} 

$ 2,579,17$ $ 2,579,178 ~ - $ - 

2,579,17$ $ 2,579,178 $ - $ - 

Investments measured at amortized cost: 

LAI F 13,291,286 

Money ma rket funds 627,028 

Held byfiscal agent: 

Money ma rket funds 60 

Total investments $ 16,497,552 

A. Investments Authorized b the California Government Code and the Cit 's investment Polic 

The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for the City by the California Government Code. The table also 
identifies certain provisions of the California Government Code that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of 

credit risk. 

Maximum Maximum 

Authorized Maximum Percentage Investment 

Investment Type Maturity of Portfolio in One Issuer 

Local Agency Bonds S years None None 

U.S. Treasury Obligations 5 years Nane Nane 

U.S. Agency Securities 5 years None None 

Bankers' Acceptance 18C~ days 4~°r~ 0% 

Commercial Paper 1g9 days 15°lQ 1tJl© 

Negotiable Certifïcates of Qeposit 5 years 3C~% Nane 

Time deposits 5 years 2S/Q None 

Repurchase Agreements 9Q days None None 

Reverse Repurchase Agreements 94 days 2Qi© None 

Medium-Term Notes S years 39°~~ 1S% 

Mutual Funds N/A 2Blo 1C?/o 

Money Market Mutual Funds N/A 29/a 1©l© 

Mortgage Pass-Through Securities 5 years 20~© None 

County Pooled Investment Funds N/A Nane None 

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF} N/A None None 

JPA Pools bother investment pools} N/A None None 
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CITY OF GREENFIELD 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2019 

NOTE 3 —CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued] 

B. Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements 

Investment of debt proceeds held by bond trustees are governed by the provisions of the debt agreements, rather than the 

general provisions of the California Government Code or the City's investment policy. The table below identifies the investment 

types that are authorized for investments held by fiscal agents. The table also identifies certain provisions of these debt 

agreements that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk. 

Maximum Maximum 

Authorized Maximum Percentage Investment 

Investment Type Maturity of Portfolio in One Issuer 

l I.~_ Treaçiiry (~hlissatinnç 
•o~ 

Nnne ~Jnne NnnP 

U.S. Agency Securities None None None 

Bankers' Acceptance 1 year None None 

Commercial Paper None None None 

Negotiable Certificates of Deposit None None None 

Investment Agreements None None None 

Repurchase Agreements 30 days None None 

Money Market Mutual Funds N/A None None 

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A None None 

Local Agency Bonds None None None 

C. Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. Generally, 

the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates. One of the 

ways that the City manages its exposure to interest rate risk is by purchasing a combination of shorter term and longer term 
investments, and by timing cash flows from maturities so that a portion of the portfolio is maturing or coming close to maturity 

evenly over time as necessary to provide the cash flows and liquidity needed for operations. 

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the City's investments to market interest rate fluctuations is provided by the 

following table that shows the distribution of the City's investments by maturity: 

Remaining Maturity (in Months) 

Carrying 12 Months 13-24 25-60 More than 

Investment Type Amount Or Less Months Months 60 Months 

LAIF $ 13,291,286 $ 13,291,286 $ - $ - $ - 

Negotiable certificates of deposit 2,579,178 598,944 742,706 1,237,528 - 

Money ma rket funds 627,028 627,028 - - - 

Held byfiscal agent: 

Money market funds 60 60 - - - 

Tota  I $ 16,497,552 $ 14,517,318 $ 742,706 $ 1,237,528 $ - 

37 



CITY C~► ~ C~~EE~I~I~LD 

N{~TES TC~ BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 34, 2(~ ~.9 

Iv~T~ 3 -- C~àSH Af~~ INVESTMEi11TS ~ ®n fiinued} 

C. disc{riures Relating to interest Rate Risk ~Continued~ 

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfil! its obligation tr the holder of the investment. This is 
measured by the assignment of rating by s nationally recognized statistical rating organízatian. Presented below is the minimum 
rating required by the California Government Cade, and the actual rating  si  of fiscal year end frr each investment type. 

investment Type 

I.AIF 

iUegotiable certificates ofdeposit 

Money ma rket funds 

Neld byfiscal agent: 

Money market funds 

Total 

Carrying 

Amount 

$ 13,291,286 

2,579,178 

627,©28 

64 

16,497,552  

Minimum Exempt  

pega  I From 

Rating disclosure 

Iv JA ~ 
iV /A 

IV/A 

N/A 

Rating as of Fiscal Year End 

AAA N©t Rated 

- $ - $ 13,291,286 

- - 2,579,178 

- - 627,x28 

_ 60 _ 

$ - $ 6© $ 16,497,492 
Y M ~ - 

I~ 

F. 

Concentration of Credit Risk 

The investment policy of the City contains no limitations an the amount that can be invested in any one issuer beyond that 
stipulated by the California Government Cade. There are no investments in any one issuer that represents 5°l or more of the total 
City's investments,  

Custodia!  Credit Risk 

Custodial credit risk far de~asits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, a government will 
not be able to recover its deposits ar will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. 
The California Government Cade and the City's investment policy da not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the 
exposure to custodial credit risk far deposits, other than the fallowing provision for deposits: The California Government Cade 
requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by State ar local governmenta l units by pledging s~curíties in an 
undivided collateral pool held by a depositary regulated under State law {unless so waived by the governmental unit). The fair 
value of the pledged securities in the collateral pawl must equal st least 12tJ°10 of the total amount deposited by the public 
agencies. California law also allows  financis!  institutions to secure the City's depasíts by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes 
having a value of 15a~a of the secured public depasíts. 

None of the City's deposits with financial institutions 'rn excess of the Federal depositary insurance Crrporation `s limits were held 
in uncaliateralized accounts. 

The custodial credit risk for investments ii the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty e.g., broker-dealer) to a 
transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment ar collateral securitïes that are in the possession 
of mother party. The California Government Cade and the City's investment policy da not contain legal or policy requirements 
that would limit the exposure to custodia l credit risk for investments. With respect to investments, custodial credit risk generally 
applies only to direct investments in marketable securities. Custodial credit risk does not apply to a loco! government's indirect 

investment in securities through the use of mutual funds ar governmental investment profs such as LAIF). 

Investment ïn State investment  Poal  

The City is s voluntary participant in the ~.ocal Agency Investment Fund ~LAIF ) that is regulated by the California Government Code 
under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California. The fair value of the City's investment in this pool is reported in the 
accompanying basic financial statements at the amounts based upon the City`s pro-rata share rfthe fair value provided by LAIF for 
the entire LAIF portfolio ( in relation to the amortized cast of that portfolio). The balance available far withdraws! is based an the 
accounting records maintained by L.AIF, which are recorded on an amortized cast basïs. 
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CITY C)F GREEN~IEL[~ 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2019 

IVQTE 4 — NOTES RECEIVABLE 4C©ntinued} 

E. Gown Payment Assistance Pr~rsm ~CDBG~ 

The City has received funding from the Department of Housing and Urban Deve#opment THUD},via the Community Deve#opment 
Block grant ~CDBG} program to help law-and moderate- income residents and commercial enterprises purchase property by 
assisting them with loans to make down payments. The promissory notes accrue simple interest of 3°~©and the repayment of 
the principal and interest is deferred for 30 years, unless the property is so#d or transferred, Accordingly, the City has recorded 
notes receivable and offsetting deferred revenue, since the value of the notes is not a source of readily available funding. At 
June 30, 2019, there were two such notes receivable for a total balance of $94,600. 

F. Down Payment Assistance Pro~rgm 

At June 30, 2019, the City he#d X739,682 in promissory notes secured by deeds of trust on various residentia# properties for 

households that participated in the City's down payment assistance program for #ow-and moderate-income households. The 
promissory note accrues limp#e interest of 3°~ and repayment of the principal and interest is deferred for Bo years, unless the 
property is so#d or transferred. According#y, the City has recorded notes receivable and offsetting deferred revenue, since the 

va#ue of the notes is not a source of readily available funding. 

G. Housïn,g.  Rehabïlitation 

The City provides #Dens to eligib#e citizens through the Housing Fund and Home grant Fund for housing rehabïlitation. Interest is 
generally deferred and repayment occurs when property ownership changes. The balance outstanding at June 30, 2019, is 
$1,090,547, which is offset by unearned revenue ín the governments# funds financial statements. As part of the Home program, 
in October 2015, the City entered into s Promissory Note with Greenfield Pacific Associates II, LP for a X4,500,000 advance for 

the construction of the Terracing Oaks housing project. The terms of the note repayment is 55 years from the Notice of 
Comp#etion, or no more than 58 years from October 2015, The outstgnding principal balance incurs 3°fQ simple interest from the 
dgteofdisbursement. The notewil#be payable from the residua#receiptscollectedfromtheProject. The balanceoutstsnding 

st June 30, 2019 is X4,923,318, which includes $423,318 in accrued interest, and is offset by deferred revenue ïn the 
governments# funds financial statements. 

iVC~TE 5 -- +CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital assets activity for the  finca#  year ended June 30, 2019, was as follows: 

Balance Assets from Balance 

July, 1 Merged June 3O, 

2018 Additions Qeletions Fire District 2019 

Governmentai ,4ctiv'rties 

Nondepreciable capital assets: 

Land $ 6,346,949 $ - $ - $ 241,716 $ 6,588,665 

Construction in progress 227,4.49 2,255,808 1,195,375 1,287,873 

Total nondepreciable capital assets $ 6,574,389 $ 2,255,808 $ 1,195,375 $ 241,716 $ 7,876,538 

©epreciable capital assets: 

Buildings and improvements $ 28,149,744 $ 16,451 $ - $ 710,363 $ 28,876,558 

Property and equipment 3,22O,ú56 432,5x4 - 62,895 3,715,455 

Infrastructure 9,287,736 $78,582 - 10,166,318 

Total depreciable capital assets 40,657,536 1,327,537 - 773,258 42,758,331 

less accumulated depreciation 13,815,900 1,826,294 - 15,642,194 

Net depreciable capital assets 26,841,636 $ (498,757} - $ 773,258 $ 27,116,137 

Net capital assets $ 33,416,025 $ 1,757,051 $ 1,195,375 $ 1,014,974 $ 34,992,675 
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CITY OF GREENFIELD 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2019 

NOTE 5 —CAPITAL ASSETS Continued) 

Ba I a nce Balance 

July, 1 June 30, 

2018 Additions Deletions 2019 

Business-Type Activities 

Nondeprecia  ble  ca pita I assets: 

Land $ 323,537 $ - $ - $ 323,537 

Construction in progress 204,041 1,054,593 1,258,634 

Total nondepreciable capital assets $ 527,578 $ 1,054,593 $ - $ 1,582,171 

Depreciable capital assets: 

Propertyand equipment $ 27,919,226 $ 571,245 $ - $ 28,490,471 

Total depreciable capital assets 27,919,226 571,245 - 28,490,471 

Less accumulated depreciation 10,116,783 968,822 - 11,085,605 

Net depreciable capital assets $ 17,802,443 $ (397,577) $ - $ 17,404,866 

Net ca pits I assets $ 18,330,021 $ 657,016 $ - $ 18,987,037 

Depreciation expense was charged to function and programs based on their usage of the related assets. The amounts allocated to each 

function or program were as follows: 

Governmental Activities: 

G e n e ra I government $ 194, 544 

Pu b I  i  c wo rks 15,064 

Parks and recreation 355,158 

Community development 14,091 

Public safety 293,007 

Streets and roads 954.430  

Tota(  depreciation expense-governmental activities $ 1,826,294 

Business-type Activities: 

Water $ 529,805 

Sewer 439,017  

Total depreciation expense-business-type activities $ 968,822 

NOTE 6 —DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

At June 30, 2019, deferred inflows of resources, reported on the Balance Sheet- Governmental Funds, consisted of the following: 

Unavailable 

Major Funds: 

Home Grant Fund $ 6,013,865 

Housing Fund 3,479,881 

Nonmajor Fund: 

CD B G Fund 94, 600 

$ 9,588,346 
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CITY C)~ Cà~EENFIEL[) 
NOTES TQ BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 34, 2429 

Nt~TE 7 — LQNG-T~Ri~ aEBT 

A. Capital Leases Payable 

~7n G~ecember 34, 2415, the capital lease was refunded by the 2415 Refunding Civic Center Lease. The refunding resulted in an 
overall debt service savings of $288,247, and the net present value of the debt service savings, called an economic gain, 
amounted ter X269,357. Refunding also resulted in an accounting lass of $31,265, which is amortized aver the life of the 2425 
lease. The refunding lease accrues interest at 1.9 percent and has semi-annual lease payments due C~ecember 34 and June 34 
each year. Future minimum lease payments are as follows: 

Fiscal Year 
Ending 
June 30 Amount 

2024 ~$ 182,570 

20121 182,570 

2022 182,570 

2023 182,570 

2024 182,570 

2025-2026 264,705 

T©tal minimum lease payments 1,177,555 

Less amount representing interest {74,050} 

Present value on net minimum lease payments $ 1,103,505 

(fin aecember 24, 2415, the City entered into a capital lease agreement with PNC Equipment Finance, LLC. The lease proceeds 

were used far the acquisition and installation of an energy conservation project. The amount of the lease was $4,224,37`7 and 

accrues interest at 3.134 percent. The lease is secured by all equipment under the lease, and the moneys and investments held 
in the escrow fund. semi-annual lease payments are due June 14 and aecember 14 of each year, commencing an December 14, 
2414. Future minimum lease payments are as follows: 

Fiscal Year 
Ending 

June 34 Amount 

2020 $~ 319,056 

2021 331,982 

2022 345,408 

2023 359,358 

2024 373,850 

2025-2029 2,107,178 

2030-2031 719,658 

Total minimum lease payments 4,556,490 

Less amount representing interest (807,438} 

Present value on net minimum lease payments $ 3,?49,052 
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CITY CJF ~REENI*IELIJ 
NOTES TC~ ~AS1C FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2419 

Nt~TE 7 -- ~,~tVG-TERM ~► EBT ~C©ntinue~) 

A. Capital Leases Payable {Continued 

Can September 30, 2©16, the City entered into a capital lease agreement with PNC Equipment Finance, LLC. The lease proceeds 
were used for the acquisition and installation of an energy conservation project. The amount of the lease was $2,163,836 and 
accrues ïnterest at 2.782 percent. The lease is secured by all equipment under the lease, and the moneys and investments held 
in the escrow fund. Semi-annual lease payments are due June 10 and December 10 of each year commencing December 10, 

2016. Future minimum lease payments are as follows: 

Fiscal Year 

End  i  ng 

Jlàne ~o 
~YYIf'11tt1~ r r rti  tir  r r ~ 

2020 $ 163,516 

2021 167,362 

2022 164,418 

2023 168,046 

2024 171,652 

2©25-2029 911,154 

2Q3o-2o31 413,121 

Total minimum lease payments 2,159,269 

Less amount representing interest (346,303 

Present value on net minimum lease payments $ 1,81.2,966 

Can December 7, 2o1S, the City entered into a capital lease agreement with tJ5 dank Equipment Finance. The lease proceeds 
were to purchase a Konica copier for the Police Department. The amount of the lease was $10,497 and the interest accrues at 
4.738 percent. Annual lease payments are due each year commencing December 2015. The lease was paid in full during the 
fisca I yea r. 

Qn March 14, 2019, the City entered into a capital lease agreement with Motorola solutions, Inc. The lease proceeds were used 
to purchase Police radios. The amount of the lease was $200,329 and accrues at 5.220/. Annual payments are due each year 

commencing March 2020. Future minimum lease payments are as follows: 

Fiscal Year 

Ending 
~t1nP ~(1 

2020 

2021 

2022 

2023 

2024 

Total minimum lease payments 

Less amount representing interest 

Present value on net minimum lease payments 

~: ~í~•l~~ 

~ 46,~15 

46,715 

46,?15 

46,715 

46, 715 

233,575 

{33,246) 

$ 200,329 
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CITY OF GREENFIELD 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2019 

NOTE 7 -- LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 

A. Capital Leases Payable (Continued) 

On February 1, 2019, the City entered into a capital lease agreement with KS State Bank. The lease proceeds were used to 

purchase a citywide surveillance system. The amount of the lease was $1,170,676 and accrues at 4.13%. Payments of $21,628 

are due monthly commencing February 2019. Future minimum lease payments are as follows: 

Fiscal Year 

Ending 

June 30 Amount 

2020 $ 259,534 

2Ú2l 259,534 

2022 259,534 

2023 259,534 

2024 151,395 

Total minimum lease payments 1,189,531 

Less amount representing interest (107,463) 

Present value on net minimum lease payments $ 1,082,068 

B. California Infrastructure and Economic Development Bank Loan Agreement 

In September 2006, the City entered into two agreements with the California Infrastructure and Economic Development Bank 

(CIEDB). The agreements provide financing for two projects within the City: the 10th  Street Water Expansion Project and the 

Wastewater Treatment Plant Expansion. The Water Expansion Project financing agreement is $3,700,000 and the Wastewater 

Plant Expansion financing agreement is $2,360,000. 

The future minimum payment obligation for the Water Expansion Project loan agreement at June 30, 2019, is as follows: 

Fiscal Year 

Ending 

June 30 Pri nci pa I Interest  Tota  I 

2020 $ 103,751 $ 75,932 $ 179,683 

2021 107,019 72,612 179,631 

2022 110,390 69,188 179,578 

2023 113,867 65,656 179,523 

2024 117,454 62,012 179,466 

2025-2029 645,154 251, 267 896,421 

2030-2034 ~ 753,372 141,345 894,717 

2035-2037 511,397 24,497 535,894 

$ 2,462,404 $ 762,509 $ 3,224,913 
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iVC~TE 7 -  Lt~NG-TERI~i1 C1EBT (Continued} 

The future minimum payment obligation for the Wastewater Plant Expansion loan agreement at June 30, 2419, is as follows: 

Fiscal Year 

Ending 

June 30 Pri nci pa 1 1 me rest  Tota  l 

2020 $ 71,711 $ 52,483 $ 124,194 

2621 73,969 56,1$9 124,15$ 

2022 76,299 47,822 124,121 

2623 78,703 45,3$0 124,683 

2024 $1;1$2 42,$62 124,044 

2025-2029 445,919 173,672 619,591 

2030-2034 520,717 97,695 61$,412 

2035-2037 353,468 16,931 370,399 

$ 1,701,968 $ 527,034 $ 2,229,002 

~. Compensated Absences 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 16 identifies certain items that should be accrued as a liability as 

benefits are earned by employees, but only to the extent it is probable that the employer will compensate the employees for the 
benefits through cash payments conditioned on the employee's termination or retirement. 

The City's employees accumulate earned but unused benefits, which can be converted to cash at termination of employment. 
The non-current portion of these vested benefits, payable in accordance with various collective bargaining agreements, at June 
34, 2419, total $405,923 for governmental activities. 

~i~TE --~ +CWIA~V~E~ ~~V L~~4à-TIE~iV1 ~IA~~LITOE~ 

The following is a summary of long-term liability activities for the fiscal year ended June 34, 2419: 

Balance Balance Due Within 

July 1, 2018 Additions Deletions June 30, 2019 fJne Year 

Governmental activities: 

Capital leases payable 

Net pension liability 

Compensated absences  

Tota  

Business-type activities: 

ClEDB water loan 

CIE©B sewer loan 

Capital leases payable 

Net pension liability  

Tota  I 

$ 5,199,0$2 $ 1,371,©05 $ 435,133 $ 6,134,954 $ 62©,308 

4,068,692 494,015 499,531 4,063,176 - 

352,555 311,711 25$,343 405,923 - 

$ 9,620,329 $ 2,176,731 $ 1,193,007 10,604,653 $ 620,308 

Balance Balance Due Within 

July 1, 201$ Additions Deletions June 30, 2019 úne Year 

$ 2,562,9$6 $ - $ 100,5$2 $ 2,462,404 $ 103,751 

1,771,4$9 - 69,521 1,701,96$ 71,711 

1,920,013 - 107,047 1,$12,966 113,857 

5$2,610 27,712 139,$77 470,445 - 

$ 6,837,09$ $ 27,712 $ 417,027 $ 6,447,7$3 $ 2$9,319 

~ 



Advance 

$ 1,895,701 

1,968,853 

Advance  
Pa va ble 

$ - 
1, 895, 701 

964,891 

$ 3,864,554 $ 3,864,554 

CITY OF GREENFIELD 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2019 

NOTE 9 —DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES —DEBT REFUNDING 

At June 30, 2019, deferred outflows of resources relating to debt refunding, reported in the statement of net position, consisted of the 

following: 

Gove rn me nta 

Acti vi ti e s 

Deferred charge on refunding $ 19,997 

NOTE 10— tNTERFUND TRANSACTIONS 

Interfund transactions are reported as either loans, services provided, reimbursements, or transfers. Loans are reported as interfund 

receivables and payables, as appropriate, and are subject to elimination upon consolidation. Services provided, deemed to be at market 

or near market rates, are treated as revenues and expenditures/expenses. Reimbursements occur when one fund incurs a cost, charges 

the appropriate benefiting fund, and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. All other interfund transactions are treated as 

transfers. Transfers among governmental funds are netted as part of the reconciliation to the government-wide financial statements. 

A. Due From/To Other Funds 

Individual fund interfund receivable and payable balances at June 30, 2019, are as follows: 

Major Governments I Funds: 

Genera I Fund 

Nonmajor Governmental Funds: 

Supplemental Law Enforcement Service Fund 

Police-Other Grants Fund  

Pol i ce  I mpact Fund 

Measure X Fund 

CSA-74 Fund 

Fire Fund 

Tots I  

$ 700,702 $ - 

- 33,428 

- 4,108 

- 126,109 

- 232,059 

- 8,778 

$ 700,702 $ 700,702 

B. Advances Receivable and Payable 

Advances receivable and payable constitute long-term borrowing between funds. Individual advance receivable and payable balances 

at June 30, 2019, are as follows: 

Fund 

Major Governmental Funds: 

General Fund 

General Facilities Impact Fund 

Debt Service Fund 

Proprietary Funds 
Water Fund 

Sewer Fund 

To to I s 
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$ 846,414 $ 594,816 

765,159 

341,825 

24,386 

32,529 

194,856 

154,752 4ú,6g4 

191,352 

26,244 

26,244 

467,676 

16,451 

351,458 

! ~11 
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NC~TE ~.~-- INTERFIJNa TRANSACTIc}NS (~ontinued) 

C. Interfund Transfers 

Interfund transfers consist of operating transfers from funds receiving revenue to funds through which the resources are to be 
expended. 

Interfund transfers for the 2418-261.9 fiscal year are as fo#lows: 

Fund Tra rt~fPr~ I n Tra rtsf~rs C)ut 

Major Governments # Funds 
Genera # Fund 

Capital Projects Fund 
R  i /'* l P _I i~an~fiia jc~r vc~vertírí-íe~ítài rüríus: 

supplemental Ls w Enforcement  servi ce  Fund 
Pa#ice-other Grants Fund 

Gas Tax Fund 
Greenfield Science War#cshap Fund 

Lexington Square Assessment Fund 
Terra Verde Assessment Fund 

SMQ##1 Fund 

SMC~#~2 Fund 

Measure X Fund 
F l re Fund 
Debt Service Fund 

Proprietary Funds 

Water Fund 
Sewer Fund 

2,348,635 $ 2,348,635 

NOTE 11— PEN~It~N PLÀN 

A. Genera! Information about the Pension Plans 

Plan C~eseriativns 

All qualified permanent and probationary emp#ogees are eligible to participate in the City's separate safety Police}and Miscellaneous 
Emp#oyes Pension Plans, cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit plans administered by the California Public Employees' 
Retirement System {CaIPERS}, Benefit provisions under the Plans are established by State statue and City resolution. CaIPERS issues 
public#y availab le reports that include a fu#I description of the pensí©n plans regarding benefit provisions, assumptï©ns and membership 
information that can be found on the CaIPERS website. 

Benefr'ts Pr©vided 

Ca1PERS provides service retirement and disabi#ity benefits, annua# cost of #wing adjustments and death benefits to plan members, who 
must be public employees and beneficiaries. Benefits are based on years of credited service, equal to one year of ful#time employment. 
Members wïth five years of total service are eligible t4 retire at age 5CJ with statutorily reduced benefits. All members are eligible for non-
duty disabilïty benefits after 1U years of service. The death benefit is one of the fo#lowing: the Basic death Benefit, the 1957 Survivor 
Benefit, or the Options#Sett#ement 2W death Benefit. The cost of #wing adjustments for each plan are applied as specified by the Public 
Employees' Retirement Law. 
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NQTE 11-- PENStt~N P1.~4N (C©ntinued~ 

A. general Information about the Pension Plans ~Continued~ 

The Plans' provisions and benefíts in effect at June 30, 2919, are summarized as follows: 

Miscellaneous 

Mire Date 
Benefi t  formin  a 

Benefit vesting schedule 
Benefit payments  

Reti remant  a  ge  

Monthly benefíts, as a 1 of eligible compensation  

Requi  red empl oyes contrï  bufi  on rates  

Requi  red employer contrï  boti  on rates 

Hire Date 
Benefit formula 

Benefit  venti  ng s chedul e 

Benefit payments  

Reti  cement a  ge  

Monthly benefits, as a 1 of eligible compensation  

Requi  red employes contri  bufi  on rates  

Requi  red employer contribution rates 

Prior to January 1, Can or after January 1, 

2013 2013 _._ 

21 55 21 62 

5 years service 5 years service 

monthly for I ife monthly for I ife 

50-63 52-b7 

1x4261-2.4181 1.01 to 2.5°l© 

7 f 0.25 

8.8921 + $120,215 6.842% ~- $488 

safety 

Pri or to January 1, fln or after January 1, 

2013 2013 

21 t~ 50 2.7% 57 

5 years service 5 yea rs service 

monthly for life monthly for life 

50-55 50-57 

2.01 to 2.71 2.01 to2.7% 

9°l 11.50°/© 

15.719% ~ $11.8,747 12.141°l + $843 

C~nt~í~utions 

Section 20814(c} of the California Public Employees° Retirement ~.aw requires that the employer contribution rates for ail public 
employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall be effective on July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. 
Funding contributions for the Plans are determined annually on an actuarial basis as cif June 30 by CaIPERs. The actuarially determined 
rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount 

to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The City is required to contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate and 
the contribution rate of employees. 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, the contributions recognized as part of pension expense for each Plan were as follows: 

Miscellaneous safety 

Contributions-employer ~ 243,153 $ 

~• . 
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CITY OF GREENFIELD 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2019 

NOTE 11 -- PENSION PLAN (Continued) 

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 

At June 30, 2019, the City reported net pension liabilities for its proportionate shares of the net position liability of each Plan as follows: 

Proportionate 

Share of Net 

Pension Liability 

Miscellaneous $ 2,150,541 

Safety 2,383,080 

$ 4,533,621 

The net pension liability was measured as of .tune 30, 2018 and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was 

determined by an actuarial valuation as that date. The City's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the 

City's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all Pension Plan participants, 

actuarially determined. At June 30, 2018, the City's proportionate share of the net pension liabilityfor each Plan, as of June 30, 2017 and 

June 30, 2018, was as follows: 

~/licroll~noniic C~fot-~i  

Proportion-June 30, 2017 0.05581% 0.04102% 

Proportion-June 30, 2018 0.05706% 0.04061 

Change-Increase (Decrease) 0.00125% -0.00041% 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, the City recognized pension expense of $885,063. Pension expense represents the change in the 

net pension liability during the measurement period, adjusted for actual contributions and the deferred recognition of changes in 

investment gain/loss, actuarial gain/loss, actuarial assumptions or method, and plan benefits. At June 30, 2019, the City reported 

deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pension from the following sources: 

Differences between expected a nd a ctua I experience 

Changes in assumptions 

Net difference between projected a nd  actua  I earnings on  

reti  rement pl a n investments 

Changes  i  n proporti on a nd differences between City 

contributions and proporti orate s ha re of contributions 

Adjustment due to differences in proportion 

City contributions subsequent to the measurement date 

Deferred 0 utfl ows Deferred Inflows of 

of Resources Resources 

$ 133,717 $ 28,273 

478,990 91,633 

26,766 - 

143,605 71,067 

148,719 6,879 

708,616 - 

$ 1,640,413 $ 197,852 

Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources above represent the unamortized portion of changes to net pension 

liability, to be recognized in future periods in a systematic and rational manner. 

$708,616 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from City contributions subsequent to the 

measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ending June 30, 2020. 
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June 30, 2019 

NOTE 11 —PENSION PLAN (Continued) 

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (Continued) 

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in 

the pension expenses as follows: . 

Fiscal year EndingJune30, Amount 

2020 $ 538,302 

2021 332,725 

2022 (101,232) 

2023 (35,850) 

$ 733,945 

Actuarial Assumptions 

The total pension liability in the June 30, 2017 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions: 

Valuation Date 

Measurement Date 

Acturia I Cost Method 

Actuarial Assumptions: 

Discount Rate 

Inflation 

Payrol I Growth 

Projected Salary Increase 

Investment Rate of Return  

Morta  I ity 

Miscellaneous 

June 30, 2017 

June 30, 2018 

Entry-Age Norma I Cost Method 

7.15% 

2.50% 

3% 

Varies by Entry Age and Service 

7.00% 

Derived using CaIPERS' Membership 

Data forall Funds (1) 

Safety 

June 30, 2017 

June 30, 2018 

Entry-Age Norma I Cost Method 

7.15% 

2.50% 

3% 

Varies by Entry Age and Service 

7.00% 

Derived using CaIPERS' Membership 

Data forall Funds (1) 

(1) The mortalitytable used was developed based on CaIPERs' specific data. The table includes 20 years of 

mortalityimprovements using Society of Actuaries Scale BB. For more details on this table please referto the 

2014 experience study report. 

Change in Assumptions 

In December 2017, the CaIPERS Board adopted new mortality assumptions for plans participating in the Public Employees' Retirement 

Fund (PERF) .The mortality table was developed from the December 2017 experience study and includes 15 years of projected ongoing 

mortality improvement using 90 percent Sale MP 2016 published by the Society of Actuaries. The inflation assumption was reduced from 

2.75 percent to 2.50 percent. The assumptions for individual salary increase and overall payroll growth were reduced from 3.00 percent 

to 2.75 percent. 
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June 30, 2019 

NOTE 11 -- PENSION PLAN (Continued) 

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (Continued) 

Discount Rate 

The díscount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.15 percent. To determine whether the municipal bond rate should be 

used in the calculation of a discount rate for public agency plans (including PERF C), CaIPERS stress tested plans that would be most likely 

to result in a discount rate that would be different from the actuarially assumed discount rate. Based on the testing of the plans, the tests 

revealed the assets would not run out. Therefore, the current 7.15 percent discount rate is appropriate and the use of the municipal 

bond rate calculation is not deemed necessary. The long-term expected díscount rate of 7.15 percent is applied to all plans in the Public 

Employees Retirement Fund, including PERF C. The stress test results are presented in a detailed report called "GASB Crossover Testing 

Report" that can be obtained at CaIPERS' website under the GASB 68 section. 

CaIPERS is scheduled to review all actuarial assumptions as part of its regular Asset Liability Management (ALM) review cycle that is 

scheduled to be completed in February 2022. Any changes to the discount rate will require Board action and proper stakeholder 

outreach. For these reasons, CaIPERS expects to continue using a discount rate net of administrative expenses for GASB No. 67 and No. 68 

calculations through at least the 2021-22 fiscal year. CaIPERS will continue to check the materiality of the difference in calculation until 

such time as they have changed their methodology. 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using abuilding-block method in which best-

estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net pension plan investment expense and inflation) are 

developed for each major asset class. 

!n determining the long-term expected rate of return, CaIPERS took into account both short-term and long-term market return 

expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using historical returns of all the funds' asset classes, expected compound 

returns were calculated over the short-term (first 10 years) and fihe long-term (11-60 years) using abuilding-block approach. Using the 

expected nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits were calculated for each fund. The expected 

rate of return was set by calculating the single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash 

flows as the one calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate of return was then set equivalent to the 

single equivalent rate calculated above and rounded down to the nearest one quarter of one percent. 

The table below reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was calculated using the capital 

market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset allocation. These rates of return are net of administrative expenses. 

New 

Strategic Real Return Real Return 

Asset Class Allocation Years 1-10(a} Years 11+(b} 

Global Equity 50.0% 4.80% 5.98% 

G) oba I Fixed Income 28.0% 1.00 % 2.62 

Inflation Sensitive 0.0% 0.77% 1.81% 

Private Equity 8.0% 6.30% 7.23% 

Real Estate 13.0% 3.75% 4.93% 

Liquidity 1.0% 0.00% -0.92%  

Tota  I 100.0% 

(a) An expected inflation of 2.0%was used for this period. 

(b) An expected inflation of 2.92% was used for this period. 
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NtJTE 11 ~- PENSIt~N PLAN ~C©ntinued) 

B. Pension liabilities Pension Ex eases and Defgirred outflows Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions Continued 

Sensitivity of the Proo©rtr'onate .Share of the Net Pension Liability to ~`hanges in L~iseount Rate 

The following represents the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 7.15 percent, as 
well as what the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one 
percentage point laver (6.15 percent} or one percentage point higher {$.15 percents than the current rate: 

Miscellaneous Safety 

~ n f r^, _ ~, r_ ~ o / ~ ~ 0! 1le ~C~~'éa ~é ©.1~rQ ~.~..~~o 

Net Pens  i  on  li  a bi f  i  tY $ ~,445,615 $ 3,79~,146 

Current Discount Rate 7.15r~ 7.15% 

Net Pension liability $ 2,150,541 2,83,080 

1l Increase 8.15f 8.15°I© 

Net Pension  li  a bí l  i  ty $ 1,081,479 $ 1,227,784 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

Deeailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued Ca1PERS financial  repares.  

C. Payable to the Pension Plan 

At June 0, 2019, the City had no amount outstanding for contributions to the pension plan required for the fiscal year ended June 36, 
2019. 

NtJTE 1~ -- LIABILITY, Wt~F~KERS' CCiN1PEN~►ATI~N, AN[J PURCFiA~ED INSURANCE 

A. Desori  Lion of Self-Insurance  Poal  Pursuant to Joint Powers A regiment 

The City of Greenfield is a member of the Monterey Bay Area Self Insurance Authority (Authority). The Authority is composed of 
1 California public entities and is organised under a joint pavers agreement pursuant to California Government Code ~650o et. 
seq. The purpose of the Authority is to coordinate and administer programs for the pooling of self-insured losses, to purchase 
excess insurance or reinsurance, and to arrange for group purchased insurance for property and other lines of coverage. 

Self-Insurance Pro rams of the Autharit 

tàenera/Liabi/íty--The City isself-insured for the first 10,00o of each liability claim. Claims above 10,00o up to $1 million are 

paid by the Authority. Maims above $1 million are covered by California Affiliated Risk Management Authorities, purchased by 
the Authority. 

!}Varkers'Compensati©n--The City does not retain aself-insured portion ofworkers' compensation claims. Annual premiums far 

coverage up to statutory levels are paid to the Authority based an the level of claims activity. A third party administrator is 
contracted by the Authority to manage claims activity. 

C. Purchased Insurance 

Propertylnsurance—The Ciey purchases all risk property coverage through a commercial insurance agency. The program limit is 
~a.,000,000,©oo. 
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2019 

NOTE 12 — LIABILITY, WORKERS' COMPENSATION, AND PURCHASED INSURANCE (Continued) 

D. Adequacy of Protection 

During the past three fiscal (claims) years, none of the above programs of protection have had settlements or judgements that 

exceeded pooled or insured coverage. There have been no significant reductions in pooled or insured liability coverage from 

coverage in the prior fiscal year. 

NOTE 13 — CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 

A. Legg I 

The City is involved in various litigations. In the opinion of management and legal counsel, the disposition of all litigation 

pending will not have a material effect on the City's financial statements. 

B. Grant Programs 

The City has received State and Federal funds for specific purposes that are subject to review and audit by thegrantor agencies. 

Although such audits could generate expenditure disallowances under terms of the grants, it is believed that any required 

reimbursements will not be material. 

C. Construction and Other Significant Commitments 

There were no construction contingencies as of June 30, 2019. 

NOTE 14 — REVENUE LIMITATIONS IMPOSED BY CALIFORNIA PROPOSITION 218 

Proposition 218, which was approved by the voters in November 1996, regulates the City's ability to impose, increase, and extend taxes, 

assessments, and fees. Any new, increased, or extended taxes, assessments, and fees subject to the provisions of Proposition 218, 

require voter's approval before they can be implemented. Additionally, Proposition 218 provides that these taxes, assessments, and fees 

are subject to the voter's initiative process and may be rescinded in future years by the voters. 

NOTE 15 — SUCCESSOR AGENCY 

A. 2016 Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds 

On January 27, 2016, the Successor Agency issued $17,915,000 in Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds at interest rates ranging from 

3.625 to 6.0 percent. The proceeds of the bonds were used to refund the 2002 and 2006 Tax Allocation Bonds. The refunding 

was completed to realize net present value savings related to the prior bonds. Principal payment will be due each February 1, 

commencing in February 2017. Interest will be payable semiannually on August 1 and February 1 each year. The bonds mature 

in 2037. 

The refunding resulted in an overall debt service savings of $5,035,708, and the net present value of the debt service savings, 

called an economic gain, amount to $3,878,147. 

On January 27, 2016, the Successor Agency deposited $1,323,209 for the 2002 Tax Allocation Bonds in an irrevocable trust with 

an escrow agent to provide funds for the future debt service on the refunded bonds. The 2002 Tax Allocation Bonds were then 

paid in full from the escrow account on August 1, 2016. 

As of June 30, 2019, the principal balance outstanding was $16,020,000. 

53 



CITY O~ GREEIVEIElï3 
iVOTES To BASK FlNANClAI STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2019 

NC}TE 15 --SUCCESSOR AGENCY {Continued} 

A. 2016 Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds Continued} 

The future minimum payment obligation for the bonds payable at June 30, 2019, are as follows: 

Fiscal Year 

Ending 
~~ ~~,~ an 

2020 

2021 

2022 

20
^
23 

2024 

~

202 
"
5-2029 

2030-2034 

2035-2036 

Principal Interest Total 

$ 865,000 $ 605,981 $ 1,4?úg81 

895,000 571,381 1,466,3$1 

$85,000 535,581 1,420,581 

900,000 509,031 1,409,031 

860,000 473,031 1,333,031 

4,710,000 1,856,905 6,566,905 

4,890,000 856,955 5,746,955 

2,015,000 78,750 2,093,750 

$ 16,020,000 $ 5,487,615 $ 21,507,615 

B. Chan~es in lon~g-Term liabilities 

long term liability activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, was as follows: 

Balance Balance Due Within 

July 1, 2018 Additi©ns Deieti©ns June 30, 2019 one Year 

2016  Ta  X AI I ©Ca ti D n Bo n d S $ 16,640,000 $ - $ 620,000 $ 16,020,000 $ 865,000 

Add. Bond premium 1,194,309 67,923 1,126,386 67,923 

$ 17,834,309 $ - $ 687,923 $ 17,146,386 $ 932,923 

NOTE 1f --SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

on January 30, 2020, the World Health organization ~"WHC~"} announced a global health emergency because of a new strain of 
coronavirus originating in Wuhan, China the "COVlC~-19 outbreak") and the risks to the international community as the virus spreads 
globally beyond its point of origin. !n March 2020, the WHo classified the CoVIC}-19 outbreak as a pandemic, based on the rapid increase 
in exposure globally. 

The full impact ofthe COVla-19 outbreak continues to evolve as of the date of this report. As such, it is uncertain as to the full magnitude 
that the pandemic will have on the City's financial condition, liquidity, and future results of operations. Management is actively 
monitoring the global situation on its financial condition, liquidity, operations, suppliers, and workforce. Given the daily evolution of the 
COV![~-19 outbreak and the global responses to curb its spread, the City is not able to estimate the effects of the C~VID-19 outbreak on 
its results of operations, financial condition, or liquidity as of the date of issuance of these financial statements. 
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3,971,530 3,971,530 

209,025 209,025 

465, 799 465, 799 

364,418 364,418 
~ 1 F1 47F ~ 1 F1 g7F 

8,172, 748 8,172, 748 

4,173,949 (202,419) 

257,257 (48,232) 

604, 242 (138,443) 

353,738 10,680 

2, 959, 525 202,451 

50,924 (50,924) 

8,399,635 (226,887) 

CITY OF GREENFIELD 
GENERAL FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019 
Variance with 

Final Budget 

Budgeted Amounts Positive  

Original Final Actua(  Amounts (Negative) 

REVENUES 

Taxes and assessments 

Licenses and permits 

Fines and penalties 

Use of money and property 

Intergovernmental revenues 

Charges for services 

Other revenues 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 

Current: 

General government 

Public works 

Building and planning 

Parks and recreation 

Public safety 

Streets and roads 

Total expenditures 

Excess of revenues over (under) 

expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 

Transfers in 

Transfers out 

Total other financing sources 

Net change in fund balance 

Fund balance, beginning of fiscal year 

Fund balance, end of fiscal year  

$ 4,684,436 $ 4,684,436 $ 5,333,706 $ 649,270 

971,045 971,045 541,183 (429,862) 

- - 50, 819 50, 819 

- - 12,466 12,466 

130,396 130,396 104,259 (26,137) 

~ R~a ann ~ Q~a ann ~ RR~ gFa ~1 SF4. 

8,635,277 8,635,277 9,001,083 365,806 

462, 529 462, 529 

846,410 362,210 

(594,816) (110,798) 

~35~,U41 ~yU,.i~l 

~ 3,650,010 ~ 3,65U,U1U ~ 4,U4U,~41 ~ ~yu,~~l 

484,200 484,200 

(484,018) (484,018) 

4bL, /11 4bL, /11 

55 



~iTY CAF G~tEEi~iFiELQ 
Ht~N1E GRANT SPECIAL REVENUE FUNC? 

SCHEDULE C}F REVENUES, EXPENC► ITURES, AN©CHANGES IN FUNa BALANCE 

BUDGET ANCi ACTUAL 

Far the Fiscal Year Ended June 3©, 2019 

REVENUES 

Use of money and property 

Charges far services 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
C'~ irr~nt~ 

Community development 

Total expenditures 

Excess of revenues over {under} 

expenditures 

Fund balance, beginning of fiscal year 

Fund balance, end of fiscal year 

Variance with 

Final Budget 

Budgeted Amounts Positive 

Uriginal Final Actua!  Amounts (Negative) 

$ - $ - $ 2,661 2,661 

- - Zú,4$4 20,484 

13,000 13,000 1,149 11,851 

13,000 13,000 1,149 11,851 

~13,a0©~ ~13,©00~ 19,335 ~~,~~~ 

116,4$3 116,483 116,4$3 

$ 103,4$3 $ 103,483 $ 135,$18 ~ 32,335 

~ 



CITY QF CREEIVFI~LD 
TRAFFIC IMPACT FUND 
SCHEDULE C)F REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019 

REVENUES 
Use of money and property 
Charges for services 

Total revenues 

EXPEN®ITURES 
~~f ~r~a~,~-• 

Public works 

Total expenditures 

Excess of revenues over sunder} 

expenditures 

E~TMER FINANCINt~ SC.~URCES 
Transfers out 

Total other financing sources 

Net change in fund balance 

Fund balance, beginning of fiscal year 

Fund balance, end of fiscal year 

Variance with 

Final Budget 

Budgeted Am©ants Posïtive 

©riginal Final Actual Am©ants 

$ 100 ~ 100 74,127 $ 74,027 

220,000 220,000 491,035 

345,OE2 

220,100 220,100 5E5,162 345,ÚE2 

{220,~Oa} 4220,000} - 22©,000 

~220,000} (220,000} - 22~,ao0 

100 100 565,162 565,062 

3, 217, 606 3, 217, 606 3, 217, 606 - 

$ 3,217,706 $ 3,217,706 $ 3,7$2,768 ~ 565,OE2 
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~li'Y t)F C~REENFIELQ 
GENERAL FACILITIES IMPACT FUND 

SCHEDULE ~F REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

For the Fisca# Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Budgeted Amounts ___ 
original Final 

Variance with 

Final Budget 

Positive 

Actual Amounts (Negative} 

- $ 23,884 $ 23,884 
REVENUES 

Charges for servïces 

Total revenues 

EXPEN©ITURES 

Capital out#ay  

Tota#  expenditures 

Excess of revenues over expenditures 

Fund balance, beginning of fisca# year 

Fund ba#once, end of fiscal year  

- - 23,884 23,884 

~1,~s~,s8s} 41,g1~,s8s) {s,~1~,s8s} - 

$ ~1,919,585} $ 41,91.9,585} ~ ~1,895,701} $ 23,884 
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CITY tJ~ GREEN~IEL~ 
HOUSING FUNS 

SCHE©ULE OF REVENUES, EXPEN©ITURES, AN©CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET AN©ACTUAL 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 34, 2019 

REVENUES 

Use of money and property 

Charges for services 

Total revenues 

EXpENï~ITURES 

Current: 

Community development 

Total expenditures 

Excess of revenues over (under} 

expenditures 

Fund balance, beginning of fiscal year 

Fund balance, end of fiscal year 

Variance with 

Final Budget 

Budgeted Amounts Positive 

Original Final Actuai Amounts (Negative} 

- - $ 386 $ 8E 

- - 14,872 14,672 

- - 15,258 15,256 

- - 15,258 15,258 

~ 963,4üi~ ~ y63,4U~ ~ ~I~i,bbb ~ 15,L5~ 

~ 



133,700 133,700 

83,347 83,347 

1,841,599 1,841,599 

2,098,946 2,098,946 

162,054 162,054 

136,922 (3,222) 

119,193 (35,846} 

1,835,549 5,950 

74,429 (34,129} 

2,156,193 (67,247) 

333,849 171,795 

CITY C~~ {~R~EiVFIElD 
SUPPLEMENTAL TRANSACTIONS AND USE TAX FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019 

REVENUES 

Taxes and assessments 

Use of money and property 

Total revenues 

EXPEIV©ITURES 
r~ ~.-.~ ~,+. 

Parks and recreation 

Community development 

Public safety 

Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

Excess of revenues over expenditures 

fJTHER ~INAIVCING S©URGES 

Transfers out 

Total other financing sources 

Net change in fund balance 

Fund balance, beginning of fiscal year 

Fund balance, end of fiscal year 

Variance with 

Final Budget 

Budgeted Amounts Positive 

Original Final Actual Amounts (Negative} 

$ 2, 261,000 $ 2,261,000 2,454,177 $ 203,177 

- - 35,865 35,865 

(167,625) (167,625} - 167,625 

(167,825} (167,825} - 167,825 

(5,771} (5,771) 333,849 339,620 

1,709,231 1,709,231 1,709,231 

$ 1,703,460 $ 1,703,460 $ 2,043,080 $ 339,620 



+li`Y C?F C~~E~N~IELC~ 
SCNEC~ULE CJF PR~PC~RTIQNATE SNARE C)F NET' F'ENSIt~N LIABILITY 
Last ~ ~ Years s  

As ©f June ~, 2019 

The fallowing table provides required supplementary information regarding the City's Persian Plan. 

2015 2016 2®~~ 2018 

Proportion of the net pension liability 4.45427°f° 4.4466$°f° 4.04679°f° 4.44694°f° 

Proportionate share of the net pension liability $ 3,128,446 3,244,311 4,448,963 $ 4,651,342 

Covered payroll $ 2,584,718 $ 2,393,628 ~ 2,635,921 ~ 3,265,249 

Proportionate share of the net pension liability as 

percentage of covered payroll 121.43°f° 133.87°f° 153.61 °/© 142.45°l° 

Plan`s total pension liability $ 34,829,966,631 $ 31,771,217,442 $ 33,358,627,624 ~ 37,161,348,322 

Plan's fiduciary net position ~ 24,647,542,515 ~ 24,947,345,871 24,745,532,291 $ 27,244,495,376 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the 

total pension liability 79.82% 78.44°f° 74.46°f° 73.31 °f° 

2019 

Proportion of the net pension liability 4.44745°l° 

Proportionate share of the net pension liability ~ 4,533,621 

Covered payroll ~ 3;518,994 

Proporti©Hate share of the net pension liability as 

percentage of covered payroll 128.83% 

Plan's total pension liability $ 38,944,855,364 

Plan's fiduciary net position ~ 29,348,589,559 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the 

total pension liability 75.26% 

Changes in assumptions 

In 2418, inflation was changed from 2.75 percent to 2.54 percent and individual salary increases and overall payroll growth was reduced 

from 3.44 percent to 2.75 percent. 

in 2417, as part of the Asset Liability Management review cycle, the discount rate was changed from 7.65 percent to 7.15 percent. 

In 2416 , the discount rate was changed from 7.5 percent (net of administrative expense} to 7.65 percent to correct far an 

adjustment to exclude administrative expense. 

In 2415, amounts reported as changes in assumptions resulted primarily from adjustments to 
expected retirement ages of general employees. 

*- Fiscal year 2415 was the 1st year of implementation , therefore only five years are shaven 
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C1TY ~~ t~~~~~1~I~L~ 

SCH~DULE QF P~N~IC~N C~Jf~TRIB(JTIQi~S 
~.ast 1 ~ Years~ 

As ©f June ~C~, 2(~~ 8 

The following table provides required supplementary information regarding the City's Pension Plan 

2015 201fi 2017 2018 

Contractually required contribution (actuarially determined) $ 444,414 ~ 515,413 $ 582 , 791 $ 439,448 

Contribution in relation to the actuarially determined 

contributions 444,414 515,413 582,791 439,448 

Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - $ - - ~ - 

Covered payroll $ 2,393,628 $ 2,435,921 3,245,249 $ 3,518,994 

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 18.38°lfl 19.55°I° 17.85°l° 18.17°l0 

Contractually required contribution (actuarially determined) ~ 748,616 

Contribution in relation to the actuarially determined 

contributions 748,616 

Contribution deficiency (excess) ~ - 

Covered payroll ~ 4,353,466 

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 16.28% 

Nofies to Schedule 

Valuation Gate: óf34/2416 

The actuarial methods and assumptions used to set the actuarially determined contributions for fiscal 

year 2418/2419 were derived from the June 34, 2417 funding valuation report. 

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal 

Amortization Method /Period For details, see June 34 , 2417 funding 

valuation report. 

Inflation 2.75°lfl 

Salary Increases Varies by entry age and service 

Payroll Growth 3.40°lfl 

Investment Rate of Return 7.4°ffl net of pension plan investment and 

administrative expenses; includes inflation. 

Retirement Age The probabilities of retirement are based on 

the 2.414 CaIPERS Experience Study for the 

period from 1997 to 2447. 

Mortality The probabilities of mortality are based on 

the 2414 CaIPERS Experience Study for the 

period from 1997 to 2447. Pre-retirement and 

post-retirement mortality rates include 5 years 

of projected mortality improvement using 

Scale AA published by the Society of Actuaries. 

~- Fiscal year 2415 was the 1st year of implementation , therefore only five years are shown 
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CITY OF GREENFIELD 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

June 30, 2019 

Supplemental Law 

Enforcement Police-Other 

Service Fund Grants Fund Gas Tax Fund Park Impact Fund 

ASSETS 

Cash and investments $ - $ - $ 283,089 $ 545,833 

Accounts receivable 16,667 5,002 58,934 - 

Interest receivable 1,193 - 1,095 2,112 

Notes receivable - - - - 

Prepaid expenditures 15,568 - - - 

Advances receivable - - - - 

Total assets $ 33,428 $ 5,002 $ 343,118 $ 547,945 

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES 

Liabilities 

Accounts payable $ - $ 894 $ 56,055 $ - 

Accrued payroll - - 1,651 - 

Due to other funds 33,428 4,108 - - 

Total liabilities 33,428 5,002 57,706 - 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 

Unavailable revenues - - - - 

Total deferred inflows of resources - - - - 

Fund Balances 

Nonspendable 15,568 - - - 

Restricted - - 285,412 547,945 

Unassigned (15,568) - - - 

Total fund balances - - 285,412 547,945 

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, 

and fund balances $ 33,428 $ 5,002 $ 343,118 $ 547,945 
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Special Revenue Funds 

Lexington 
Community Greenfield Square Terra Verde 

Police Impact SPWPr Irnnart ('antPr Impart Crir~n~-r~ accorc,-v,or,+ /1cr~ccmnr~+ 

$ - $ 869,348 $ 130,278 $ 127,261 $ 320,366 $ 793,943 

- - - 75,198 - - 

- 3,364 504 492 1,240 3,072 

$ - $ 872,712 $ 130,782 $ 202,951 $ 321,606 $ 797,015 

$ - $ - $ - $ 6,721 $ 5,858 $ 17,771 

- - - 6,433 769 803 
126,109 - - _ _ _ 

126,109 - - 13,154 6,627 18,574 

- 872,712 130,782 189,797 314,979 778,441 
(126,109) - - _ _ _ 

`1LV,1VJ~ O/L,/1L 1~y,/OL 1Z5.7,/~/ ~14,y /y //ZS,441 

$ - $ 872,712 $ 130,782 $ 202,951 $ 321,606 $ 797,015 

Continued 
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CITY OF GREENFIELD 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

June 30, 2019 

SMD #1 Fund SMD #2 Fund Measure X Fund CDBG Fund 

ASSETS 

Cash and investments $ 406,285 $ 395,895 $ - $ 44,286 

Accounts receivable - - 232,059 - 

Interest receivable 1,572 1,532 - 171 

Notes receivable - - - 94,600 

Prepaid expenditures - - - - 

Advances receivable - - - - 

Total assets $ 407,857 $ 397,427 $ 232,059 $ 139,057 

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES 

Liabilities 

Accounts payable $ 7,642 $ 7,634 $ $ - 

Accrued payroll 880 398 - - 

Due to other funds - - 232,059 - 

Total liabilities 8,522 8,032 232,059 - 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 

Unavailable revenues - - - 94,600 

Total deferred inflows of resources - - - 94,600 

Fund Balances 

Nonspendable - - - - 

Restricted 399,335 389,395 - 44,457 

Unassigned - - - - 

Total fund balances 399,335 389,395 - 44,457 

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, 

and fund balances $ 407,857 $ 397,427 $ 232,059 $ 139,057 

66 



n„~.+ c,,..,,;,.,, 

Special Revenue Funds 

Asset 
Forfeiture/ 

Seizure Water Impact Debt Service 

Fund Fire Impact Fund CSA - 74 Fund Fund Fire Fund Fund 

$ 9,279 $ 74,248 $ - $ 2,958,389 $ - $ - 

- - 580 - 129,503 - 
- 10,831 - 11,447 - - 

~ ✓,~~ -i ~ UJ,v/ 7 ~ JOV .,7 L,7V7,OJ0 .~ 1L.7,JVJ .~ 1,7VO,OJJ 

$ 974 $ - $ - $ 2,000 $ 57,925 $ - 
-~ n ~ n -~ 

974 - 8,778 2,000 382,247 - 

8,305 85,079 - 2,967,836 - 1,968,853 

- - (8,198) - (252,744) - 

8,305 85,079 (8,198) 2,967,836 (252,744) 1,968,853 

$ 9,279 $ 85,079 $ 580 $ 2,969,836 $ 129,503 $ 1,968,853 

Continued 
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CITY OF GREENFIELD 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

June 30, 2019 

ASSETS 

Cash and investments $ 6,958,500 

Accounts receivable 517,943 

Interest receivable 38,625 

Notes receivable 94,600 

Prepaid expenditures 15,568 

Advances receivable 1.968.853 

Total assets $ 9,594,089 

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES 

Liabilities 

Accounts payable $ 163,474 

Accrued payroll 39,036 

Due to other funds 700.702 

Total liabilities 903,212 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 

Unavailable revenues 94,600 

Total deferred inflows of resources 94,600 

Fund Balances 

Nonspendable 15,568 

Restricted 8,983,328 

Unassigned (402,619) 

Total fund balances 8,596,277 

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and fund balances $ 9,594,089 
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CITY OF GREENFIELD 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (Continued) 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Supplemental Law 

Enforcement Police-Other 

Service Fund Grants Fund Gas Tax Fund Park Impact Fund 

REVENUES 

Taxes and assessments $ - $ _ $ _ $ _ 

Use of money and property 6,067 - 5,569 10,738 
Intergovernmental revenues 157,080 13,687 665,383 2,200 
Charges for services _ _ _ _ 

Other revenues _ _ _ _ 

Total revenues 163;147 13;6$7 670;952 12;938 

EXPENDITURES 

Current: 

Public works _ _ _ _ 

Parks and recreation - - - - 

Public safety 28,140 11,034 - - 
Streets and roads - - 413,719 - 

Capital outlay - 200,329 - - 
Debt service: 

Principal _ _ _ _ 

Interest _ _ _ _ 

Total expenditures 28,140 211,363 413,719 - 

Excess of revenues over (under) 

expenditures 135,007 (197,676) 257,233 12,938 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

Transfers in - - - - 

Transfers out (341,825) (20,386) (32,529) - 

Proceeds from capital lease - 200,329 - - 

Total other financing 

sources (uses) (341,825) 179,943 (32,529) - 

Net change in fund balances (206,818) (17,733) 224,704 12,938 

Fund balances, beginning of fiscal year 206,818 17,733 60,708 535,007 

Fund balances, end of fiscal year $ - $ - $ 285,412 $ 547,945 
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Special Revenue Funds 

Lexington 
Community Greenfield Square Terra Verde 

Police Impact Sewer Impact Center Impact Science Assessment Assessment 
Fund Fund Fund Workshop Fund Fund Fund 

- 17,102 2,563 2,503 6,302 15,618 
11,003 75,051 88 188,997 - 302,832 

- - - - 91, 899 - 

11,003 92,153 2,651 191,500 98,201 318;450 

- - - - 76,002 239,062 

- - - 345,463 - - 

- - - 345,463 76,002 239,062 

11,003 92,153 2,651 (153,963) 22,199 79,388 

- - - 194,856 150,752 - 

- - - - (40,600) (191,352) 

- - - 194,856 110,152 (191,352) 

11,003 92,153 2,651 40,893 132,351 (111,964) 

(137,112) 780,559 128,131 148,904 182,628 890,405 

$ (126,109) $ 872,712 $ 130,782 $ 189,797 $ 314,979 $ 778,441 

Continued 
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CITY OF GREENFIELD 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (Continued) 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019 

SMD #1 Fund SMD #2 Fund Measure X Fund CDBG Fund 

REVENUES 

Taxes and assessments $ _ $ _ $ _ $ _ 

Use of money and property 7,992 7,788 - 871 
Intergovernmental revenues 35,158 84,050 466,264 - 
Charges for services _ _ _ _ 

Other revenues _ _ _ _ 

Total revenues 43,150 91;838 4E6;2F4 $71 

EXPENDITURES 

Current: 

Public works 61,229 18,139 - - 
Parks and recreation - - - _ 

Public safety _ _ _ _ 

Streets and roads - - 108,087 - 
Capital outlay _ _ _ _ 

Debt service: 

Principal _ _ _ _ 

Interest _ _ _ _ 

Total expenditures 61,229 18,139 108,087 - 

Excess of revenues over (under) 

expenditures (18,079) 73,699 358,177 871 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

Transfers in - - - - 

Transfers out (26,200) (26,200) (667,676) - 

Proceeds from capital lease - - - - 

Total other financing 

sources (uses) (26,200) (26,200) (667,676) - 

Net change in fund balances (44,279) 47,499 (309,499) 871 

Fund balances, beginning of fiscal year 443,614 341,896 309,499 43,586 

Fund balances, end of fiscal year $ 399,335 $ 389,395 $ - $ 44,457 
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Debt Service 
Special Revenue Funds Fund 

Asset 

Forfeiture/ 

Seizure Water Impact Debt Service 
Fund Fire Impact Fund CSA - 74 Fund Fund Fire Fund Fund 

$ - $ - $ - $ - $ 1,174,876 $ - 
- 1,459 - 58,197 - - 
- 80,690 6,470 - - - 
_ ~n oon 

~ 5 17 0 7 1 A((~~ i^ n-~ r~ n r+ •. -. ~ - ~ UL,1`t7 0,4/U ZSÓ,U~ ~ 1,1.~~,4~~ 

3,136 - 14,668 - 

3,136 - 14,668 - 

1,381 82,149 (8,198) 88,077 

1,411,770 - 

- 435,133 

- 63,987 

(236,293) (499,120) 

- 351,458 
/~C AC~1 

- - - - (16,451) 351,458 

1,381 82,149 (8,198) 88,077 (252,744) (147,662) 

6,924 2,930 - 2,879,759 - 2,116,515 

$ 8,305 $ 85,079 $ (8,198) $ 2,967,836 $ (252,744) $ 1,968,853 

Continued 
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CIiY C)~ GREENFIELt~►  
NQNiV1AJC?R ~QVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

CQMBINING STATEMENT QF REVENUES, EXPEN~lTURES, AND CHANGES IN FUN© BALANCES 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019 

REVENUES 
Taxes and assessments 

Use of money and property 

Intergovernmental revenues 
Charges for services 

©then revenues 

Total revenues 

EXPENC3ITURES 
Current: 

Public works 
Parks and recreation 

Public safety 
Streets and roads 

Capital outlay 

úebt service: 
Principal 

Interest 

Total expenditures 

Excess of revenues over (under} 
expenditures 

QTMER FlNANC~NG SCiURCES (USES] 
Transfers in 

Transfers ©ut 

Proceeds from capital lease 

Total other financing 

sources  (usen  

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances, beginning of fiscal year 

Fund balances, end of fiscal year 

$ 1,174,$76 

^y ~

1

}p

4

~

2

t

,769  

2,©88,953 

121,779 

5,118 

3;533;4~5 

394,432 

345,463 

1,468,748 

521,806 

200,329 

435,133 

63,987 

3,429,898 

103,597 

697,06E 
(1,363,219 

200,329 

(465,824} 

(362,227) 

8,958,504 

$ 8,596,277 
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ciT~rc~~~~~~ENFi~~D 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 

PRIVATE PURPOSE TRUST FUNDS 

June 3Q, 2f~19 

RDA 

RDA Successor 

Successor Agency 

Agency Debt 

Admin Fund Service Fund Total 

Assets 

Cash and investments $ 893,934 $ 60 $ 893,994 

Interest receivable 3,459 - 3,459 

Note receivable 2,135 - 2,135 

Prepaid insurance - 144,444 144,444 

Total assets 899,528 144,504 1,©44,432 

Liabilities 

Accounts payable 2,150 - 2,150 

Accrued interest payable - 252,492 252,492 

Unearned revenue 735,491 - 735,491 

Noncurrent liabilities: 

Due within one year - 932,923 932,923 

Due in more than one year - 16,213,463 16,213,463 

Total liabilities 737,641 17,398,$78 18,136,519 

Deferred Inflow of Resources 

Deferred loss on debt .refunding - 171,048 171,048 

Total deferred inflow of resources - 171,048 171,048 

Net Position 
Held intrust $ 161,887 $ (17,425,422} $ 117,263,535} 
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CITY OF GREEiV~IELD 
CQMBINING STATEMENT (JF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET PQSITIQN 

PRIVATE PURPQSE TRUST FUNDS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 3C?, 2419 

Additions: 

Taxes 

Investment earnings 

Total additions 

~edueti©ns: 

Community development 

Interest expense 

Total deductions 

Increase {decrease) before transfers 

Transfers 

Change in net position 

Total net position-beginning 

Total net position-ending 

RDA 

RDA Successor 

Successor Agency 

Agency Debt  

Adorin  Fund Service Fund  Tota!  

$ 1,418,586 $ - ~ 1,418,586 

17,585 13S 17,72© 

1,435,171 135 1,436,306 

4,905 - 4,905 

- 550,920 550,920 
,____~,. 

4,905 550,920 555,825 

1 4~1 _~~~ f550.785) 88©.481 

180,667 699,814 880,4~31 

(18,78©) (18,125,236) (18,144,016) 

$ 161,887 $ (17,425,422) ~ (17,263,535) 
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